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Vision

Wasl Modaraba Management Limited (Formerly
Awwal Modaraba Management Limited) will play a
role in the economic process and development of
Pakistan by providing a range of advisory services

and financial support, through Sharia compliant
modes; to viable starved sectors of the economy.

Mission

Wasl Modaraba Management Limited (Formerly
Awwal Modaraba Management Limited) aims to be
at the vanguard of innovation in modaraba
management services, offering the best solutions
to our customers, value to our certificate holders
and modaraba investors, complemented with a
challenging, equal opportunity to our employees.
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Chairman’'s Review

| am pleased to present my review as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Wasl Modaraba Management
Limited [ Formerly Awwal Modaraba Management Limited), the management company of Wasl Mobility
Modaraba (Formerly First Prudential Modaraba) for the year ended lune 30, 2025.

During the year under review the Registrar Modaraba, 3ECP granted approval for the sale and transfer of
total shares of Awwal Modaraba Management Limited {AMML) held by the Pak Brunel Investrment Company
Limited to Wasl Investment Finance Limited {Buyer), the shares were successfully transferred to the buyer
on November 26, 2024, Pursuant to the transfer of shares, the control of AMML has been transferred to Wasl
Investment Finance Limited,

The name of Modaraba has been changed to Wasl Mobility Modaraba after approval of Registrar Modaraba
effective March 25, 2025, The Head Office of Modaraba has been shifted to Lahore which will increase its
business volume and client base which will improve/enhance profitability of Modaraba. A branch office at
Karachi is functional to serve its customers.The name of Awwal Modaraba Management Limited has also
been changed to Wasl Modaraba Management Limited and Registered Office of the company has been
shifted to Lahore after approval of shareholders of the company and SECP.

The profit of modaraba after taxation is Rs 30.30 million lower than previous year at PKR 61.70 million in
FY24 as total income has reduced from Rs 199.27 million to BRs 176.98 million . The reduction in income
occurred because the Modaraba was effectively not originating new loans as the transfer of ownership
process was in effect from April 4, 2024, when the 5PA between Pak Brunei and Wasl was signed, till
Movember 26, 2024 when the transaction was consummated. In addition, reduction is KIBOR negatively
affected profitability for assets on the books.

Gaoing forward, after taken over management control of modaraba by wasl, the management has started
new business mainly in shariah complaint financing of two and three wheelers and buses to increase
volumes while maintaining asset quality. These sectors have traditionally been served by the informal sector
in Pakistan. In contrast to previous years, the modaraba has now an established track record of business
growth and profitability which puts it in a strong position to raise funds for business growth. Transitioning
fully to to the new business model, however, will take some time,

The Board of Directors of the management company comprises five members, including two Independent
Mon-Executive Directors and two female Directors. The Board performs its statutory duties and fulfils its
responsibilities by ensuring that the Modaraba has a capable leadership and an effective executive
management team. The board, on quarterly basis, undertakes an overall review of business risks to ensure
that Management maintains a sound system of risk identification, risk management and related systemic
internal controls to safeguard assets, resources, reputation and interest of the company and its stakeholders.

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to thank all our customers, investors, regulators and other
stakeholders for placing their trust in the Modaraba.

Faraz Akhtar Zaidi
Chairman Dated: 25 September 2025
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of Wasl Modaraba Management Limited (Formerly Awwal Modaraba Management
Limited), the management company of Wasl Mobility Modaraba (Formerly First Prudential Modaraba), is
pleased to present the Directors’ Report together with Audited Financial Statements of Modaraba for the year
ended 30 June 2025.

Economic Review & Outlook

Pakistan’s economy has shown signs of recovery in FY25 following a contraction in FY24. Notable indicators
include a decrease in inflationary pressure, stability in exchange rate, and an improved current account balance.
Economic growth remains a challenge despite all government efforts, as investment in the economy remains
challenged.

Pakistan GDP recovered somewhat in FY2025 with a growth rate of 2.7%, driven mostly by the industrial/service
sectors. The Modaraba’s business, of leasing combustion engine and EV bikes / auto rickshaws to gig-economy
players as well as retail customers is heavily dependent on economic growth. While GDP growth remains
subdued, both triggers of higher volumes; a) industrial/economic output, and b) consumer demand, will hamper
lease originations.

The Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) has depicted strong performance during the same period. This is largely
driven by improving underlying fundamentals and influx of liquidity from domestic investors. While we believe
the stock market performance indicates some resilience in the economy, its size relative to the total economic
output prevents it from being used as a benchmark for economic growth. Ultimately, we feel that the valuation
of the stock price of Wasl Modaraba should be a reflection of its operational performance depicted through its
financial results.

Material Developments

The Registrar Modaraba, SECP granted approval for the sale and transfer of total shares of Awwal
Modaraba Management Limited (AMML) held by the Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited to the
Wasl Investment Finance Limited (Buyer), the shares were successfully transferred to the buyer on
November 26, 2024. Pursuant to the transfer of shares, the control of AMML has been transferred to
Wasl Investment Finance Limited.

The name of Modaraba has been changed to Wasl Mobility Modaraba after approval of Registrar
Modarabas effective March 25, 2025. The Head Office of Modaraba has been shifted to Lahore which
will increase its business volume and client base which will improve/enhance profitability of
Modaraba. A branch office at Karachi is functional to serve its customers.

The name of Awwal Modaraba Management Limited has also been changed to Wasl Modaraba
Management and Registered Office of the company has been shifted to Lahore after approval of
shareholders of the company and SECP.

Financial Snapshot

During the year total revenues reduced from PKR 199.27 million in FY24 to PKR 176.98 million in FY25
due to reduced portfolio size. Modaraba generated net profit of PKR 30.31 million compared to PKR
61.70 million in the corresponding period last year.

The main reason for the fall in revenues as well as profitability has been the fact that after the signing
of the Sale Purchase Agreement (SPA) on April 4, 2025, WIFL was not able to close on the acquisition
of Awwal Modaraba Management Company until November 26, 2024. For almost a half of the fiscal
year, the company was not origination new volumes. Post takeover, there was a significant period of
post-acquisition integration including but not limited to alignment of business objectives, streamlining
operations and filling key personnel requirements. Management was only seriously able to start
generating business volume at the Modaraba from May, 2025. In addition, with interest rates declining
through FY2025, the lower passive incomes coming from cash and bank balances as well as higher
prepayments on the legacy portfolios, meant further decline in revenue and thus profitability. The
new management has established a sound track record of profitability and maintaining asset quality
in the past and we are confident that this will support the Modaraba’s efforts to scale profitably.



Operating Results

Balance Sheet 30 June 2025 30 June 2024
(Rupees “000”) | (Rupees “000”)
Certificate capital 1,293,916 1,293,916
Total equity 749,349 757,854
Property, Plant & Equipment-ljarah 258,085 60,614
Diminishing Musharaka 328,266 583,736
Investment Properties 101,400 74,180
Bank Balances 161,237 231,763
Profit & Loss
Revenue 176,988 199,272
Operating expenses 131,953 118,391
Profit before Management Fee 45,035 80,881
Taxation (8,178) (9,407)
Net profit for the year 30,313 61,696
Appropriations
Profit distribution @ 3.00% (2024: 3.00%) - 38,817
Statutory reserve 157,982 157,982
Earnings per certificate 0.23 0.48

Governance & Shariah Compliance

The Board of Directors is committed to ensure compliance with various requirements of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The Modaraba is in compliance with the
requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, relevant for the year
ended 30 June 2025.

Shariah Advisor is involved from the outset to ensure that prospective clients’ business and proposed transaction
structure are in line with Shariah principles. Strong emphasis is placed on good governance and implementation
of all policies in spirit. The Board of Directors comprise independent directors to ensure external oversight.

Strategic Objectives on ESG & Corporate Sustainability

Modaraba is deeply committed to integrating sustainable and inclusive practices into the core of its
business Operations. We believe that long-term value creation for all our stakeholders is intrinsically
linked to our environmental, social, and governance (ESG) performance and our dedication to
fostering a diverse, equitable, and inclusive (DE&I) workplace. The Board supports Modaraba’s
initiatives and is actively involves in Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) practices.
Sustainability is a core part of our strategic and operational frameworks.

Sustainability related Risk

The Board is committed to effectively addressing risks that affect our operations and stakeholders. We are
dedicated to integrating ESG factors into the Modaraba's strategic framework, with a strong emphasis on
environmental sustainability, social responsibility, and strong governance practices. The Board has assigned
additional responsibility to one of existing committee to monitor and review sustainability related risks and
opportunities of the company. The Board has adopted SECP’s ESG disclosure guidelines.

Board provides governance and oversight in relation to the Company’s initiatives on Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) matters. Nevertheless, the requirements of Regulation 10A will be complied with in due
course.



Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The Board of Directors is pleased to report that:

¢ The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Modaraba, present fairly its state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

® Proper books of account of the Modaraba have been maintained.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

e International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable to Modarabas in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements.

¢ The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

* There are no significant doubts upon the Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going concern.

e There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the
listing regulations.

* There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as on
30 June 2025 except for those disclosed in the financial statements.

¢ During the year under review, five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each
director was as follows:

Name of Director No. of Meetings attended
Mr. Faraz Akhtar Zaidi 3

Mr. Nazir Ahmad Shaheen

Mr. Shafiq ur Rehman
Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda

Ms. Myra Hussain Qureshi

Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza ( Ex-Director)

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar (Ex-Director)

Ms. Humaira Siddique ( Ex-Director)
Mr. Irfan Ahmad ( Ex-Director)

Mr. Saif Tariq (CEO)

Ms. Sadaf Shabbir (Ex-CEO)

N W NDNDNNNW NMNWOLmG

Change in Directors

On the completion of sale and transfer of total shareholding of the company to Wasl Investment Finance Limited,
four directors and Chief Executive of the company were resigned and the approval of Registrar Modaraba,
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan have been obtained for the incoming directors & CEO. The new
composition of the Board is as under:-

1. Mr. Faraz Akhtar Zaidi* Chairman Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Nazir Ahmed Shaheen Independent Director
3. Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda** Independent Director
4. Mr. Shafig Ur Rehman*** Non-Executive Director
5. Ms. Myra Husain Qureshi**** Non-Executive Director
6. Mr. Saif Tariq Chief Executive Officer

* Mr. Faraz Akhtar Zaidi was appointed with effect from December 12, 2024 in place of Mr. Irfan
Ahmad who resigned as non-executive director of the company with effect from November 26,
2024,

** Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda was appointed on the Board of the Company as independent Director with
effect from January 17, 2025 in place of Mr. Shahid Ghaffar, who resigned as independent director
of the company with effect from December 27, 2024.



***Mr Shafiqg Ur Rehman was appointed as non-executive director of the Company with effect from
January 17, 2025 in place of Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza who resigned as non-executive director of the
company with effect from December 31, 2024.

**** Ms. Myra Hussain Qureshi was appointed as non-executive director of the company with effect
from December 17, 2024 in place of Ms. Humaira Siddique who resigned as non-executive director of
the company with effect from November 26, 2024.

Audit Committee & HRR Committee

The Board has formed an Audit Committee in compliance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate
Governance. The Committee comprises of three members. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Director. The Committee reviews the periodic financial statements and examines the adequacy of
financial policies and practices to ensure that an efficient and strong system of internal control is in place. The
Committee also reviews the audit reports issued by the Internal Audit Department. The Audit Committee is also
responsible for recommending to the Board of Directors the appointment of external auditors.

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to the internal audit department of the parent company
(Wasl Investment Finance Limited) who is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

¢ During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each
member was as follows:

Name of Member No. of Meetings attended
Mr. Nazir Ahmad Shaheen 4

Mr. Faraz Akhtar Zaidi

Mr. Shafiq ur Rehman

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar (Ex-Member)
Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza ( Ex-Member)
Ms. Humaira Siddique ( Ex-Member)

N N N NN

e  Three meetings of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR&RC) were held during the year.

e The pattern of holding of certificates by the certificate-holders is included in this annual report.

e The Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, their spouses and minor children did not carry out any
transaction in the certificates of Modaraba during the year under review.

The Board of Directors

The total number of directors are 6 including CEO as per following details:
a. Male: 4
b. Female: 2

The current composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Nazir Ahmed Shaheen
Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda

Other Non-Executive Directors Mr. Faraz Akhtar Zaidi

Mr. Shafiq ur Rehman
Ms. Myra Hussain Qureshi
Chief Executive Officer Mr. Saif Tariq

Director’s Remuneration

The remuneration of a Director for attending meetings of the Board or any Committee of the Board is
determined under the Director’'s Compensation Policy adopted by the Company. Under the said policy,
independent members and non-executive members of the board (excluding nominee directors) are entitled to
receive the prescribed fee as determined by the Board of Directors only for attending the Board Meeting and
meetings of Committee established by the Board. Further, the nominee directors / Chief Executive Officer / any
other director in whole time remunerated service with the Company are not entitled to any payment for



attending meetings of the Board or any Committee of the Board. However, all the directors are entitled to be
paid all traveling, hotel and other expenses incurred by them in attending and returning from meetings of the
Directors or any committee of Directors or General Meeting of the company in connection with the business of
the Company.

Auditors

The present Auditors’ M/s BDO Chartered Accountants have completed five year period, therefore, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has approved the M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company-Chartered
Accountants, for the appointment and upon their consent to act as external auditors of the Modaraba for the
year ending 30 June 2026. However, their appointment will be subject to the approval of the Registrar of
Modaraba Companies and Modarabas.

Shariah Advisor’s Report

The Modaraba continues to seek guidance from its Shari’ah Advisor, Mufti Muhammad lbrahim Essa as and
when required to ensure full compliance to Shari’ah Audit mechanism developed in consultation with Registrar
Modaraba. The internal audit department has also been trained to handle the day-to-day affairs of the
Modaraba ensuring complete adherence to Shari’ah policies and principles. The Shari’ah Advisor Report issued
for the affairs of the Modaraba for the year ended 30 June 2025 is attached in the Annual Financial Statements.

Future Outlook

After approval of the annual financial results for FY2025, management has presented a business plan to the
board of directors budgeting growth outlook for FY2026. The business plan is based on management’s view of
providing Shariah complaint leasing to consumers for two and three wheeler vehicles, both in the combustion
engine as well as EV space. With majority of the build out on the expense side complete, management is
confident that provided the macro elements continue to be stable, the Modaraba can generate higher volumes
of leases that enhance profitability of the Modaraba over time.

INCREASE IN AUTHORIZED CERTIFICATE CAPITAL AND DECLARATION OF RIGHT MODARABA
CERTIFICATES ISSUANCE

The Board has approved the proposed increase in the authorized capital of Modaraba and issuance of
Right Modaraba Certificates subject to the approval of Registrar Modaraba Companies & Modaraba,
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The issuance of Right Modaraba Certificates is for
the compliance of Registrar Modaraba Companies and Modaraba, Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) letter dated 19 September 2024 required that shareholder loan of Rs.
150 million in modaraba by Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited (PBICL) ex-sponsor Company of
modaraba shall not be released without its replacement with new equity injection.

The details are as under:-

e Increase in authorized certificate capital of WASL from 152,217,660 modaraba certificates of
Rupees 10 each to 200,000,000 modaraba certificates of Rupees 10 each subject to approval
of Registrar Modaraba Companies and Modaraba, Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) and approval of amendment in the Prospectus of WASL accordingly.

e Subject to compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and requisite regulatory
approvals and permissions as the case may be, including the approval of certificate holders of
WASL and the approval of Registrar Modaraba Companies and Modaraba, SECP and SECP
under the applicable laws, to increase the paid-up certificate capital of WASL from
129,391,676 modaraba certificates of Rupees 10 each to 160,717,400 modaraba certificates
of Rupees 10 each by the issuance of additional 31,325,724 modaraba certificates of the face
value of Rs. 10 each by way of issue of right modaraba certificates to be issued at an issue
price of:



o Rs. 4.74 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 52.6% to par value) — for all
modaraba certificate holders except the Modaraba Company [sponsor];

o Rs. 5.27 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 47.3% to par value) — for the
Modaraba Company [sponsor] portion of the right issue;

to be offered to the modaraba certificate holders in proportion of 24.21 right modaraba
certificates for every 100 modaraba certificates held, i.e. 24.21% right modaraba certificate
issue at anissue price of Rs. 4.74 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 52.6% to par value)
— for all modaraba certificate holders except the Modaraba Company [sponsor] and Rs. 5.27
per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 47.3% to par value) - for the Modaraba Company
[sponsor] portion of the right issue.

Acknowledgments

The Board of Directors would further like to acknowledge and appreciate SECP and Registrar Modaraba for their
continuous guidance and support. Also, we would like to avail this opportunity to thank our Certificate holders,
customers and investors for placing their trust in the Modaraba.

On behalf of the Board

Saif Tariq Shafiq Ur Rehman
Chief Executive Director
Date: September 29, 2025
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Summery of key operating and financial data of the Modaraba for last 6 years
Year ended June 30, 2025

Year 2025 2024 2023 2022 Restated 2021 2020
Paid-up Capital 1293.916| 1293.916| 1293.916 1,293.916 872.177 872.177
Statutory Reserve 157.982 157.982 157.982 157.982 153.623 151.747
Reserve arising out of merger (208.031)| (208.031)| (208.031) (208.03) - -
Certificate Holders Equity 749.349 757.854 734.975 657.317 429.947 420.571
Nos.of Modaraba Certificates 129.391 129.391 129.391 129.391 87.217 87.217
Current liabilities 266.862 247.822 253.589 247.692 107.869 58.866
Non-currrent Assets 626.733 509.309 642.348 467.128 119.168 132.438
Current Assets 472.286 512.151 365.822 455.996 429.637 344.901
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation 39.059 71.261 96.29 24.079 9.376 (3.705)
Taxation (8.745) -9.565 2.255 (3.440) - (1.697)
Earning / (Loss) per Certificate (Rs) 0.23 0.48 0.76 0.16 0.11 (0.06)




Wasl Mobility Modaraba

(Formerly First Prudential Modaraba)

Gender Pay Gap Statement- 2025

Gender Pay Gap Statement under Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
Circular 10 of 2024:-

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2025:-
i.  Mean Gender Pay Gap: 19.60 %
ii. Median Gender Pay Gap: 11.48 %
iii.  Any other data /details as deem relevant: The above ratios reflect the overall employee

gender pay gap across the organization. The modaraba ensures equitable compensation
for the female members in their respective role based on experience, qualification and

performance.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Saif Tariq
Chief Executive Officer



Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
Wasl Modaraba Management Limited (formerly Awwal Modaraba Management Limited)
Year ended June 30, 2025

This statement is being presented to comply with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2015,

Wasl Modaraba Management Limited (formerly Awwal Modaraba Management Limited) (WMML - the
Company) has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are six (6) as at lune 30, 2025 as per the following;
a. Male: 04
b. Female: 0z

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category MNames

Independent Directors Mr. Mazir Ahmed Shaheen
Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Faraz Akhtar Zaidi

Mr. Shafig ur Rehman

Ms, Myra Hussain Qurashi

Executive Directors Mr, Saif Tarig (Chief Executive Officer)
Female Directors Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda

Ms. Myra Hussain Qureshi

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company;

4, The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies
glong with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017
and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2015;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;



8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations;

5. The Board meets the criteria of requirement of Directors’ Training program.
10. The Beard has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with

relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Commities Mr. Mazir Ahmed Shaheen {Chairman)
Mr. Faraz Akhtar Zaidi

Mr. Shafig ur Rehman

HR and Remuneration Committee (HRRC) Ms. Azra Yagub Vawda (Chairman)
Mr. Faraz Akhtar Zaidi

Ms. Myra Hussain Qureshi

Mpr. Saif Tarig

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the committee for compliance;

14, The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following,

5. No. Mame of the Committee Frequency of the meetings held during the year
1. Audit Committee Quarterty
2. HR and Remuneration Committee Yearly

15. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not
a close relative {spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or director of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;



17. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with; and

18. Explanation for nan-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32,
33 and 36 (non-mandatory requirements) are noted below:

5. Requirement Explanation Reg.
No. MNo.
1. The Board is responsible for setting the | At present the Board provides | 10{A)
Company's sustainability strategies, | governance and oversight in relation to
pricrities and targets to create long | the Company's initiatives on
term corporate value Environmental, Social and Governance
[ESG) matters. MNevertheless, the
requirements of Regulation 10A will be
complied with in due course.
2. In order to effectively discharge its | The decision for establishment of | 10{A){5)
sustainability related duties, the board | sustainability committee or assignment
may establish a3 dedicated | of the additional responsibilities to an
sustainability committee having at | existing board committee will be
least one female director, or assign | considered for the approval of Board in
additional responsibilities to an | the upcoming meeting of Board.
existing board committee.
7. There shall be an internal audit | The Board had outsourced the internal | 31{1)
function in every company. audit function to the internal audit
department to Pak Brunel Investment
Company Limited (the previous holding
company of WMML under a service |lavel
agreement which was completed on May
26, 2025. However, subsequent to the
reporting date, the management has
appointed a manager Internal Audit on
July 01, 2025 and Head of Internal Audit
on August 12, 2025 to establish a
separate Internal Audit Department as
per requirement of the Regulations
Faraz Akhtar Zaidi
Chairman Dated: 29* September, 2025




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS WASL MOBILITY
MODARABA (FORMERLY FIRST PRUDENTIAL MODARABA) ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERMANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Wasl Modaraba Management Limited (formerly Awwal Modaraba Management Limited) (the
Modaraba Management Company) for and on behalf of Wasl Mobility Modaraba (formerly First
Prudential Modaraba) (the Modaraba) for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Modaraba Management Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of
Compliance reflects the status of the Medaraba's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations
and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the reguirements of the
Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inguiries of the Modaraba’s personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Modaraba Management Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As 3 part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Modaraba’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations reguire the Modaraba Management Company to place before the Audit Committee,
and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only reguired and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by
the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Modaraba Management Company's
compliance, in all material respects, with the reguirements contained in the Regulations as
applicable to the Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Page - 1



Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the reguirement of the Regulations
as reflected in the paragraph reference where it is stated in the Statement of Compliance:

S.No. | Regulation reference | Description

1 10 (A) The Board does not have the policies and procedure to address
sustainability risk and opportunities.

. 10 (A)(5) The Board does not have a dedicated sustainability committee at
the reporting date nor has assign the additional responsibility to
any existing committee.

3 231(1) The Modaraba does not have an internal audit function at the
reporting date.

KARACHI

DATED: CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner: Tarig Feroz Khan

UDIN:
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ALHAMD SHARIAH ADVISORY SERVICES

PVT)LIMITED

P digayy e Juad g sdases
Shari’ah Advisor's Report

For the period ended June 30, 2025

We have conducted the Sharish review of Wasl Mobility Modaraba [formetly First Prudential
Modaraba), managed by its Modaraba Management Company. for the financial year ended June 30.
2025, in accordance with the requirements of the Sharlah Governance for Modarabas and report that,
except for the observations mentioned hereunder, in our opinion:

i The Modaraba has introduced mechanisms that have strengthened Shari'ah compliance in
letter and spirit. and the systems. procedures. and policies adopted by the Modaraba are in line
with the principles of Shari'ah,

ii. The agreements entered intoc by the Modaraba are Shari'ah-compliant. and the financing
agreements have been executed on the formats approved by the Religious Board. All related
conditions have been duly obzerved.

iii. To the best of our knowledge and according to the explanations provided to us, the business
transactions undertaken by the Modaraba and all other matters incidental thereto are in
conformity with Shari'ah requirements. the requirements of the Prospectus. the Islamic
Financial Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan. and the Shari‘ah Governance for
Modarabas.

iv. Profit-sharing ratios, distribution of profits; and charging of losses (if any) relating to any
deposit-raising product conform to the basis and principles of Shari‘ah.

V. The earnings realized from sources or by means prohibited by Shari'ah have been duly credited
to the charity account.

Note

In 2022, the Modaraba held 843,975 shares in LSE Financial Services Limited. Subsequently, LSE
Financial Services Limited underwent a demerger in 2023, resulting in the transfer of its shares to LSE
Ventores Limited and L5E Proptech Limited. In 2024, L5E Proptech fiirther went through a demerger,
transferring its sharezto LSE Capital. which was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange in May 2024

As per EMI list issued by the Pakistan Stock Exchange, both LSE Ventures and LSE Capital have been

rlassified as non-compliant, due to their non-adherence to the Shari'a screening criteria as prescribed
by SECP. Accordingly. the Modaraba has donated all dividends received on these shares to the charitable
institutions.

However, it is pertinent fo mention here that these shares did not come into the cwnership of the
Modaraba through purchase, but rather through the settlement of collateral held against default on a
Shariah finance facility.

| 192322 2671867 | B www.alhardshariahadvisory.com | 3 info@alhamdshariahadvisory.com




The management approached the Shariah Advisor with the request that. since any sale of these shares
would be considered as settlement of the financing claim, the compliant porticn of the divestment
proceeds should be distributed to the certificate holders of the Modaraba. In this respect. the Shariah
Advisor was asked review the existence of non-compliant and compliant elements in the underlying
aszets of the shares. Upon reviewing the unaudited financial statements as of March 31, 2025 it was
revealed that both companies’ assets contained a substantial portion of Shariah compliant assets.
Therefore, it is suggested that same review shall be conducted based on the annual audited financial
statements of both companies become available, to reach a conclusive determination. The management
has expressed its willingness to dispose of these share to maximize the benefit for certificate holders.
Once the Shariah Advisor and Management conclude the percentage of compliant underlving assets in
these shares, the management will dispose of them, allocate the proceeds corresponding to the
compliant portion to the certificate holders ofthe Modaraba, and donate the remaining portion

Conclusion

Based on our review, we are satisfied that the affairs of Wasl Mobility Modaraba (formerly First
Prudential Modaraba) have been conducted in accordance with the principles of Shari'ah, except for the
matter noted above.

We prav to Allah Almighty to grant us suceess, protect us from hindrances and difficulties, and bestow
financial prosperity upon Wasl Mobility Modaraba,

For and on behalf of Alhamd Shariah Advisery Services (Pvt.) Ltd

ool 4

MUFTI IBRAHIM ESSA MUFTI UBAID UR RAHMAN ZUBAIRI
Chief Execuiive fficer Director

Dated: September 23, 2025

| 192322 2671867 | B www.alharmndshariahadvisory.com | 3 info@alhamdshariahadvisory.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF WASL MOBILITY MODARABA
(FORMERLY FIRST PRUDENTIAL MODARABA)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of WASL MOBILITY MODARABA (FORMERLY FIRST
PRUDENTIAL MODARABA) (the Modaraba), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June
30, 2025, and the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that
we have obtained all the infaermation and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belicf,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial pesition, statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of change In equity and the statement of cash flows togelher with e noles funming parl
thereof conform with the accaunting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Modaraba Companies and Madaraba (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980
(XXXl of 1980), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Modaraba's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in
equily and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted v audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
lor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Modaraba and
Mnodaraba Company (Wasl Modaraba Management Company (formerly Awwal Modaraba Management
Company) in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Prafessional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 1.2 to the financial statements, which states the status of divestment and
transfer of shares of Modaraba Management Company from Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited
to Wasl lnvestment Finance Limited (WIFL) on Hovember 26, 2024, Consequently, WIFL has become
the Holding Company of the Modaraba Management Campany. Qur opinion is not modified in this

respecl.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audil maklers are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of mast significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

Key audit matters ] How the matter was addressed in our audit

5, No

11

“Existence & Valuation of Diminishing Musharika Financing

‘Refer note 9 to the financial statements

for the year ended June 30, 2025, the
Maodaraba has outstanding balance of Rs.
328.267 million relating to Diminishing
Musharika Financing, which represent
significant element of statemenl of
financlal position.

The existence and wvaluation of
Diminishing Musharika Financing
embodies potential risk of inappropriate
measurement and recording, which
wauld impact the Modaraba's reported
financial position as those are the main
drivers of movement in the assets of the
Maodaraba.

Management considers certain specific
factors including the age of the balances,
recent payment patterns, historical
defaults and forward-looking information
on macro-economics factors and other
available information with respect to
credit worthiness and reliability of the
counterparties, Mapagement wuses  this

Dur audit procedures in respect of this area
includes the following:

Our audit procedures included assessing and
testing the deslgn and cperations of key
internal controls over the recognition,
valuation and existence of Diminishing
Musharika Financing.

We performed test of controls over addition,
termination and periodic valuation of the
portfolio and performed other substantive
audit procedures en the year end balances.

We have reviewed documentation required
in the context of the parties and veritied
income from financing during the year by
performing recalculation of schedules on a
sample basls as per applicable accounting
frameworh.

We performed detailed assessment of the
credit approval procedures of the
Diminishing  Musharika sanctioned  in
accordance with the modaraba regulations
and perfarmed credit review procedures on

information to determine whether a sample basis.

provision for fmpairment {s required at a

specific or overall balance level. * In addition, we have circulated
conflrmations to  certain  parties and

checked realization of assets.
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5. No | Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In view of significance of Diminishing
Musharika Financing in relation to the total
assets  of the Modaraba, we have
consicered Diminishing Musharika
Financing as a Key audit matter.

We assessed the reasonableness of provision
made by the management in accordance
with IFRS- 9,

We obtained an understanding of the
requirements of IFRS 9 Included, amongst
others, review of the methodology
developed and applied by the Modaraba to
estimale the ECL in relalion to Diminishing
Musharika Financing.

We also considered and evaluated the
assumptions used in applying the ECL
methodology based on historical information
and qualitative factors as relevant for such
estimales.

We evaluated the relevance, completeness,
and accuracy of the source data used for
computation of ECL.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of
the ECL model by performing recalculation
on test basis. The adequacy of the
disclosures presented in the financial
statements regarding allowance for ECL was
alsp assessed, based on the applicable
accounting standards, requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 and regulation of
modaraba for appropriateness of the
assumptions wsed and the methodology
applied,

Information Other than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

CQur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance canclusion thereon,
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IBDO

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respansibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

Ify based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this resard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company for the Financial
Statements

Management of the Modaraha is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of lhe Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Flatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of
1980) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management of the Modaraba Management Company is responsible
for assessing the Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Modaraba or Lo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Company are responsibile for overseeing the Modaraba’s
financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ebjectives are to abtain reasonable assurances about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with |SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arfse from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we excreise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dus to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sulTicient and appropriale to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud {s higher than for one resulting frem error, as fraud may
invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;
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*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not far the purpose of expressing an opinjon on the
effectiveness of the Modaraba's internal control;

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management of the Modaraba Company;

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Modaraba Management Company's use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may casl significant doubt on the Modaraba's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we tonclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such dlsclosures are inadequate, to modify our gpinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Modaraba to cease to continue as a going coneern: and

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and cvents
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors of the Modaraba Management Company regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide the board of directors of the Modaraba Management Company with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors of the Modaraba Management Company, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit mallers, We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of duing su would reasonably be expected to autweigh the public interest benefits of such
oommunication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of the Modaraba as
required by Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXX of
1980);

b} thestatement of financial position, the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon
have been drawen up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Flotation and Contral)
Crilinance, 1980 (XXX1 of 1980) and are in agreement with the boaks of account;

£) business conducted, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the
year by the Modaraba were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba;

and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deductecd
by the Modaraba and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that
Ordinance,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Tarlq Feroz Khan.

KARACHI

DATED: BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDiIN;
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WASL MONLLITY MODARALA

(FORMERLY FIRST PRUDENTIAL MOBAIRATA)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL MOSITION
ASNTJUNE 30, 2025

2025 202
MNote ettt LTI LR
ASSETS
NOM CURRINT ASSICTS
Properly and cquipment 5 50,667,343 2433724
P'rparty, plant sod cquipment - larah 6 258,085,437 6,614 607
Intangible asseis 7 - -
lovvestienl prope liss B B A0, 000 T4, 1RO 000
Loy berm portion of Diminishing Mushaikas Finaece 9 190,077,307 155,550,778
Loz terin inveshments 12 1,168,079 5411.474
Lusng teem advances and deposits 13 3,711,799 Bl 445
Uelerred inx astet 14 2,627,570 10,013,865
626,733,515 500,308 K93
CURRENT ASSELS
Modoruly, Musharika, Murabaha and Qher finance - net 5 . =
Current portion of Diminishing Mushorikn Finnnee i) 138,189,603 228,145,583
Wakala Fimance 10 66,183,562 .
Tijneal Fipamce 11 T, 250,000 .
Shot tenm invistinealy 16 14,257 836 16,957,897
linrnh venlils reecivable 17 5,668,113 1,538,122
Receivablie ngainst snfe of apdeulture prodice - net 13 . -
Adlvances, prepayments and alher receivables 19 16,227 206 A T5419
Taxation - net 70 34,272,604 29,009,587
Bank balanees 21 161,237,132 211,763,932
AT 286, LG 512151140
TOTAL ASSETS 099,010,681 021,460,003
EQUITY AND LIAMLITIES
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Anthorized cerfilicate capital
152207660 madarmba ceriifientes of mpoes 10/ gach 1,522,176,600 1,322, 1 76,600
lssued, subseribed amd paid-up centificale sapital
129,391,676 modaraba eerfifieates of nipees [0/ such 2 1,293,906, 760 1,293 916,760
Reserves 2 (544,567,083) (436,062,632)
Cerificaie lolders' equiily 749,349,677 157,851,128
Unrealized Ings on revaliention of investiments 24 (767,745) {6 160, 254)
MNON CURRENT LIABILITIES
1-labitity ngains right of use assels 25 1940 855 | -
Lomg derin portion of Harah depagit 26 tvl, (85,099 21,863,249
81,574,004 21 863,249
CURRENT LIARILITIES
Shott teni finnee 27 150,000,000 150,000,000
Current portion of Loase lability sgoinst right-of-use asse 25 7621479 -
Redecmnble capital - participatory and unsecored 815,000 B15,000
Currend portion of ansh deposit 25 24,147 4030 10,688,681
Acarved and other liokilitics 28 30,024,374 13, 297.435
Unietaimiad prodie disteibotion 52,654,472 53,021,794
266,862,755 T HIZ00
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES L099.019,681  1,001460,003

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS i)
The nnnesed potes from | 1o 49 Torm an integral pait of lese finaucial silenenis. &‘

For Wasl Modarvaba Management Linited (Formerly Awwal Modan ba Manngement Limited )
(Munagement Company)

CHTEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DT DIRECTOR



WASL MOBILITY MODARARBA
(FORMERLY FIRST PRUDENTIAL MODARADA)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPRENENSIVE INCOME
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Male . Rupees
lncume
laral reutils carned 31,147,979 29,557,320
Income fram deposig willy bonks 28,294,496 7,989,158
Income from Diminishing Mushariks Finsnce B1,633,855 160,002, 741
Ineoae from Tijareh Finance 11,285
Giain oasale of mvestment - muioal fund 2,830,400 =
Dividend income 053,540 1,052,853
lental income from investment properics - 217,108
Olher income o 503,062 2,821,740
150,373,617 201,651,520
Unrealized (losshgain on investnents ciassifisd as 'fir value through prafit
or [ogs [} (2,700,062) 10,418,563
Unirealized gain on revaluation of investments propertics 8 27,220,000 -
Reversal of allowanee far expected credit loss k| 2A419,241 B3, 748
Beversal of provision against impairmen) of investment 773,584
Allowance for expected eredit lnss 172 321,97 {13,844,955)
176,988 820 199,272,456
Exponses
Deprecialion on Larah assets (27,305,851 (19,379,074)
Adunfnistentive expenses 12 (77,895,255) (62,568,311)
Finnnee charpes 1 (26,752,534) (6443 R8I0}
131,953,640 (11R,391,211)
45,015,180 80,881,245
Modaraba Compiny's remimneration EL] {4.503,518) (7,0126,101)
Provision [or service sales (nx on
Management Company’s remuneration 15 (675,528)] (1,068,915)
{5,179,046) {8, 195,016)
Provision [or Workers' Welfare Fund {797,123) (1.425.220)
Profit before loxation and levy 9,059,011 1,261,009
Levy 36 (567,441) (157.928)
Profit belore taxation 38,491,570 71,103,081
Tuiclion 36 B,178518 (9407, 1413}
Profitufier xsion A0 313,052 il 605 40
Orther compreliensive income
ltems that will net be reclassified subsequently
Loy statement of profil o Joss
Surplus / (logs) on revaluation of investments classificd
as ‘st fudr vitlue throngh other compreliensive income’ - nel of tax 5,312,509 (2,322,352)
Total comprelensive income for (he year 35,625,561 50371558
Barnings per cerlificate - Wil sod diluted 17 0.23 048

The annexed notes fivm | 1o 49 form an integral purt of these Gonneinl sialements.

For Wasl Modaraba Manngement Limited (Fovmerly Awwal Modarabin Memagement Limited)

(Managemen! Comigany)

CHIEK FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DIRECTOR

b

DIRECTOR



WASL MOBILLITY MODARABA

(FORMERLY FIRST FRUDERNTIAL MODARATIA)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FORTHE YEAR ENID JUNE M), 2034

Himdirie ol duidy i 4Ry
Tl ompbiivns b lusams for the yer  na

Dttt tratbermy off s, 120 o cstificone fiow she e mneted - Jurs 3200
Halifie a2 June 58, 2004

Baliiee i iy 0 1004

Totue eornpiefeniine fiesme i the = -+ s

Erprybacressy i Ma 0,080 per ey fivasie b e o mdied o JE26

Mulwnrn ds Fame A0, FU119

e armsexe inpgen from | s 0 Semoan mingel oy of dree finescialsemenie 1
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Wahmgissns Dust pasy)
DIRECTOR MRECTOR

CHTEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER



WASL MORILITY MODARABA

(FORMERLY FIRST PRUDENTIA L MODARATIA)

STATEMENT OF CASU FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Mol beivre nxation

Aulfrtmenty for somn-cnsh o silser fems
Dreparecintinn - own nse nsseky
Deprecintion - ripht-ol-nse psels
Depueciation - Nk arsets
Amortization an mimgible asscls
Dividend incoms
Unrenlised lnss ¥ (pain) on isvesimnenis
Cimw on sale of investmend - nusal fund
it o s posal - {jmh asscis
Cinviin i dligpuosnl - owi assels

Cimin o remeasuremant of imvestmonl proporey

Fimaneinl charges

Wi ling capaind clmnges
Brecrewse { (lnceease) b cureenl fssels
Woakaly Finiing
Tijnaah Faanging
Tl el peegivaliy

Addvomees, prepayinents pmd oller recdivaliles

Enerease / (deevense) dn cucrend labilities
fjdial ileposits
Accimed mnd other Balililiog

Conll generabed fron et i
Diminishing Musha ik Finooce - nel
Toages (pawd] f recoived

Fimincinl charpes

Mol cash Mows from operaling activites

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Teecliase of owi risels

I'rocieeds fiom dispodal - ijarah assels
Proceeds froom digposal - awn asiels
Piganien! af lease rentnl - righl-of-use aszers
Pucehise ol forah pisels

Frvesimient i i funds

[edempion of sl s

Divicleul riscoivd

Mt ey {usied in} o genersied frons ivesting activilics
Currenl portion of Ledse labifity against tight-of use azsel
CAST FLOWS FRROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Penlat diztribiagedd

Ulnchsimgy dividead
et cosh used in Tumaging detivitics

Ret (deciease) £ inenciso in ceshoond cash oquivilails
Cngh mined eash egoivalonls of beginning of the your

Cash il cosh eguivilens 2t end of e year

Mty

a1
23

11

i
i)

51

=

1

Thie ponexed nodes froan 1 i 89 fem an integind pan of these finaneial siagenionis.

2025 W
....... ﬂulmu......_.....
19.059,01| 71,261,009

1,748,523 260,742
1,500 948 -
1,005 851 19,379,074
. 41,010
(952.540) (1,052,853}
2,100,002 (h0A18,563)
{2,300 400} :
(256,301 (266,811)
(04,2507 i
(27,220,000} .
G75IM 36443826
60,513 428 115,647,538
(66, L1, 582} -
{ 16,250,000) .
4,139,381} 1,608,033
(34,806,582 §2,513,330
(121,464,535) 54,121,393
m.m.sun‘ [ ;:.-m,r.-:rq
(2,273.061) LT A0, T30
54,007, 538 (23,583, 605)
2051431 147,185,300
255,469,451 69,105,556
{6,295,425) i, b4, 427T)
(45,666, 100) (16,443,826)
215558.757 174,302 606
(31,441,937) (879,000
6§ 3,061 98T
364,250 -
(5,023,578
(225.173.431) -
{ 100, D00, B0 ) .
10283400 -
953,500 1,052,851
[236,900,732) 3,183,720
(I5,817,503) (38,817,508
(367,222) 6,534,776
_ {39,1%4,825) (31,992,727)
(10,5246, 800 115,433,605
231,763,932 6,430,357
[61.2Y7 142 231763, 908

For Wasl Maodaraba Management Limdted (Farnes iy Awwsl Moadavaba Manapement Limiled)

CIHEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

(hanagement Company)

CINEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

e
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WASL MOBILITY MODARABA

(FORMERLY FIRST PRUDENTIAL MODARABA)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Wasl Mobility Modaiaba (Formerly First Prodential Modaraba) (here-in-afler referred to as
"the Madaraba") is a multipurpose, perpetual Modaraba. The Modaraba is registerad under the
Medaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba Rules, 1981. The Registrar (Modarabas) with the approval of SECP vide order
dated April 03, 2019 appointed Wasl Modaraba Management Limited (WMML} [Formerly
Awwal Modaraba Management Limited (AMML)] to takeover and manage (he affair of the
Modataba which was exceuted and effeclive from February 03, 2020, WMML (fotmerly
AMML) was wholly owned subsidiary of Pak Brunei Investment Coinpeany Limited (PBICL),

1.2 During the last reporting year, the Board of Directors of PBICL decided to proceed with
divestment of its total inlerest in WMML. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of WMML in
their meeting held on September 30, 2023 directed to disseminate the sipnificant development
to relevant authorities and stakes holders in a timely and transparent manner.

On October 12 2023, invitation for Expression of Interest was published in the newspaper for
compleie acquisition of WMML including management rights of the modaraba.

On November 21, 2023, the PBICL informed the Registiar Modaraba, SECP about the receipt
of bids from various parties, The SECP vide letter dated November 21, 2023, directed to
apply to the Registrar Modaiaba for the ransfer of WMML shares and management rights of
the madaraba to the propesed acquirer.

The process of evaluation / review of the bids, received by the PBICL, was completed and the
Share Purchase Agreement (sgreement) belween the PBICL and the buyer was signed on
April 03, 2024,

The Registrar Modaraba, SECP on September 19, 2024 granted approval for the safe and
transfer of fotal shares of WMML held by the PBICL to the WASL Investmen! Finance
Limited (Buyer).

During the year, the shares were suecesstully transferred Lo the buyer on November 26, 2024,

Pursuant to the fransfer of shares, the control of WMML has also been (ransferred.
Consequently, WMML has become the wholly owned subsidiary of the WASL Investment

Finance Limiled.

Current portion of Lease liability against right-of-use asset

Page-1



1.3

123

The geographical locations and addresses of the Modaraba's business umits arc as under:
Location Address Purpose

Office No 818, 8th Floor, High Q Tower, Jail Road,  Head Office
Lahore Gulberg 5, Lahore (Registered
Office)
Suit No: - A & B, 3d Floor, Plot No: 31-C,
Karachi Khayaban-e- Shamsheer, Phase-V, Branch Office
Defence Tousing Authority, Karachi

During the year, the registered office of the Modaraba has been changed from Karachi to
Lahore.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financia) statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
apiplicable in Pakistan comprises of:

- Infernational Financial Reporting Staudurds (IFRS) issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Boards (IASB) as notified under (he Companies Act 2017,

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the provision of Companies Act 2017
and made applicable to Modarabas;

- 'rovisions of and directives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017; and

- Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Floatation and Conltrol) Ordinance, 1980,
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulations 2021 and
directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba (Floatatien and Control) Ordinance 1980, the Modaraba
Campnnies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulations, 2021, IFAS and directives
issued by the Securties and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) differ from
requirement of 1IFRS, the provision of and direclives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Contrel) Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba
Companies and Medataba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulations, 2021, IFAS and directives
issucd by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) have been followed.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise
stated in respective noles to the financial statements.
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Effective date
(nmnual periods
beginning on or

after)
Amendmenis to [AS | Presentation of Financial Slatemenis' -
Classification of liabililies as current or non-current January 01, 2024
Amendments (0 IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-
current linbilities with covenants January 01, 2024
Amendments to TAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance
arrangements January 01, 2024

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amenchnents and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periads, beginning on or after the dale mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Modaraba's operations or are not
expected 1o have significant impact on the Modaraba's financial stalements other than certain
addilional disclosures,

Amendments to TFRS 7 'Flnancial  [ostrupents:  Disclosures!

Amendments regarding the classification and measuwrement of financial
instruments January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instuments’ - Amendments regarding
the classification and measurement of [inancial instruments

January 01, 2026
Amendments (o IAS 21 'The Effeets of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025
Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding nature-dependent electiicily contracts that are
oflen structured a3 power purchase agreements (PPAs) Januay 01, 2026
Amendments lo IFRS 9 Financial Instemnents' - Amendmenis reparding
nalure-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as power
purchase agreements (PPAs) lanuary 01, 2026
IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts January 01, 2027

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of TFRS¢ and [ASs,
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4.1

[FRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has heen issued
by IASB effective from July 01, 2009, However, it has not been adopted yel locally by
Secutities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notifiad by the IASB to be effective for annual
petiods beginning on or afler January 1, 2023, However SECP has notificd the revised
tuneframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by Jannary 01, 2027.

IFRS 18 Tresentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yel locally by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 19 "Subsidiaries without Public Acconntability: Disclosures' has been issued by [ASH
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the prepacation of these financial statements are
set out below. These sccounting policies have been consistenily applied to all the years
presented, unless stated otherwise.

Property and equipment
In own use - Operating assets

Opcrating assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impainnent loss, if any.
Depraciation is charged to the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income
applying the straight-line methed in accordance with the rates specified in note 5 1o these
financial statements. For additions and disposals during the year, depreciation is charged
proportionately to the period of use.

The residual values and useiul lives of praperty and equipment are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate at the end of cach reporting date,

Gaing and losses arising on the disposal or retirement of an asseis is determined as the

difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asscts and recognized in
the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income,
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b)

d)

Assets under ijarah

ljarah assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is charged to statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income using
the straight-line method over the assel’s estimated useful life. In case the lease term is shorler
than the useful life, depreciation may be aligned with the lease period. For additions and
dispusals during the year, depreciation is charged proportionately to the period of use,

Right-use-of-asset

The Modaraba recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
gny accumulaled depreciation snd impairment losses, if any, and adjusied for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cast of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incwred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received,

Unless the Modaraba is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased assel al the end
of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shotter of its estimated useful life and the lease lenm. Right-of-use assets are subject
to impaitment. The right of use assets are included in property and cquipment in own use,

Lease liability against vight-of-use asset

At the commencement date of the lease, the Modaraba recognises lease liabilities measwed at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance Oxed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantess.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Modaraba uses the incremental
borrowing rate at \he lease commmencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily deferminable. Afler the commencement dale, the amount of lease liabitities is
increased lo reflect the accretion of interesl and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the canying samount of lease liabilities 15 remeasured if there 1s a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in lhe
assessment to purchase the underlying assct.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

d.d,1

Short-tern leases and leases of Iow-value assels

The Modaraba applies thie shorl-term lease recognition exemption (o its short-term leases of
property and equipment (i.c., those leases that have n lease term of 12 months or less from the
commiencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the tease of low-
value assels recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease tenm,

Intangibles

An intangible assel is recognized as an asset if il is probable that fulure economic benefits
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and (he cost of such asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets having a finite useful lifc are stated at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impaitment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
cartying amoun! or recognized as a separate assel, as appropriate, only where it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated witli the asset will flow to the Maodaraba and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Amontization is charged to statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income by applying the straight line method in accordance with
the rates specified in note 7 to (hese financial statements.

The uscful lives and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, as appropriate, al cach
repoiting date. Amortization is charged from the month the assel is available for use while in
the case of assets disposed off, it is charged till (he month preceding the month of disposal.

Investment propert ¥

Investment property is held for capital appreciation or rental income or both and is not held
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investiment property is initially measured at its cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequently, it is measured at its fair value, Gains or losses
arising from changes in the faiv value of investment property are included in the statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial Insfruments

Financial asscts

At amortized cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and
Page- 7



b)

4.4.2

4.4.3

- The contractual texms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

At fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured al fair value through other comprehensive income when:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contraciual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- 'The contractual lerms of the financial asset pive rige on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount cutstanding,

Other financial assets

All financial assets which do not fall into the first two categories must be stated at fair value
through profit or loss.

Inifial measurement of financial asset

A financial assel is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at 'V 1'PL, (ransaclion
costs that are directly atiributable to 1ts acquisition.

Subscquent measurement
The tollowing accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assels:

Financial asscts at ~ These assels are subsequently measured al fair value, Net gains aad

FVTr1, losses, including any profil / markup or dividend income, are
tecognized o the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets at ~ These assels are subsequently measured st amorlized cost using the

amaortized cost effective profit method. The amortized cost is reduced by impainment
losses. Profit f markup income, loreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and
other comprehensive income,

Lquity investments at These assets are subsequently measwred at fair value. Dividends are
FYTOCI recognized as income in statement of profit and less and other
comprehensive income unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other nel gains and
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are never
reclazsified to the statement of profit and loss and  other

comprehensive income,
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d.4.4

4.4.5

Surplus / (deficit) on re-measurement of FVTOCI investiment is presented separately from
equity in order to comply with the Modaraba Regulations, 2021,

A linancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of
similar financinl assets) is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or the Modaraba has (ransfered its rights to receive cash flows from the asset,
or has assumed an obligation (o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a pass-through arrangement and the Madaraba has:

(a) tansferred substantially all of the risks and rewnrds of the asset; or

(b) neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Regular way confracts

All purchases and sales of financial assets ave recoguised on the trade date which is the date
oi which the Medaraba commits te purchase or sell the finaneial assel,

Finnncial liabilities

The financial liabilities are recogmsed in the Modaraba®s statemenl of Ouasocial position when
the Modaraba becomes a party to the contraclual provisions of the imstrument. These include
trace payables, accrued and other liabilities and are recognised initially at fair value plus
directly attributable cosl, if any, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective profit method. The elfective profit method is a method of ealculating the amortised
cost of a financial Liabilily and of allocating financial charges over the relevant period.

The effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futnre cash payments
{(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral patt of the effective profit
rate, transaction costs and other premiwns or discounts) through the expeeted life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a sharter period, to the amortised cost of a financial
Liability."

A financial hability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial Hability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is lieated as a derccognition of the
original lability and the recognition of 2 new liability, and the difference in respective
canying amounts is recognised in the stalement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income.
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4.4.6

Offsetting of financial assefs and financial labilities

Financial assets and financil liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements only when the Modaraba has a legally enforceable right to offset mud the
Modaraba intends to either settle on a nct basis, or 1o realize the assets and to setile the
liabilities simultancously, Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also
offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when perniilted by the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Tmpairment

Finaneinl Asscts

Madaraba follows the recognition and measurement criteria including the Expected Loss
Model as prescribed under IFRS 9 - 'Financial Instruments' for the of impairment of financial
ussels.,

[FRS 9 requires the Modaraba to record an allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) for
all loans and other debt financial assets nol held at FVTPL, ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractyal cash flows due in accordance with (he contract and all the cash flows
that the Modaraba expeets to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to
the asset's original effective profit rate.

LECLs are recognised in two stages. Tor credil exposurcs for which there has not been a
sipuificant increase in eredit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credil losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months {a [2Z-manth ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
tnitial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposurc, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Modaraba considers a fnancial asset in default when contactual payments are 90 days
past due. However, in certain cascs, the Modaraba may also consider a finauecial asset to be in
default when the internal or external information indicates that Modsraba is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Modaraba.

A litetime ECL is recorded on ljara rentals and Diminishing Musharakah Financing in which

there have bheen significant increase in credil risk from the date of initial recognilion and
wlieh are credit impaired as on the reporting date.
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b)

4.6

4.7

4.8

Furthermore, the management has made an assessment of impairment nnder expected credit
loss model of TFRS 9 for financial assets other than financing assels i.e. balances with banks
and other linancial assels, and concluded that impact is not material to the financial
slatements.

MNon-finrncial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assels are reviewed at cach reporling date to ascertain
whether there is any indication of impairment. 1 any such indicalion exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. Au impatrment loss is recopnized, as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, for the amount by which the
asgel’s carving amount exceeds ifs recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is determined through
discounting of the estimated futwe cash flows vsing a discount rate that reflects eurrent
markel assessments of the tune value of moncy and the risk specific to the assets. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which (here are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable atnount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assel's cairying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been delennined, net of
depreciation or amostization, if no impainnent loss hiad been recognized,

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables

Deposits, advances, prepayments and other receivables ave stated initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the elTective prolit rate niethod,

Staff vetivement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Modataba operates a delined contributien provident fund for all permanent employess
who opt for deductions. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Modaraba and the

employees io the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

Acerned and other liabilitics
Accrued expense and other payables are initially recognised al cost whicl: is the fair value of

the consideration to be paid in the firture for goods and services reccived whether or not billed
o the Madaraha.
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4.9

.10

411

4111

Provisions

Pravisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present, legal or constructive obligation
as @ resull of past evenl, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made, Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to refleet the current best

estimate.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the accurrence or non-oceurrence ol one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Modaraba. It can also be a present obligation
arising, from (he past events that is not recognized because il is not probable (hat outllow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot he measured refiably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a
change in the probability of an outflow oceurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recopnized as provision,

A contingent assel is a possible asset (hat arises from past events and whose existence will be
conlirmed only by the occurrence or nen-oceurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events
not wholly within the control of the Modaraba, Contingent assets are nol recognized but are
clisclosed in the notes to the accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is pobable. Whan
an inflow is virtually cerlain, an asset is recognized.

Revenue reeognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent thal the cconomic benehits will flow to the Modaraba i.e.
when performance obligation is satislied and revenue can be relinbly measured. Revenue is
vecognised al fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue from different
sources is recognised on the following basis.

Ljarah rentals
Income from ifjarah is recognized as and when ijarah rentals become due on a systematic basis
over the fjarah period. Documentation charges, front end lees and other ijarah related income

are taken to (he statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, when they are
realized, and are included in other income.
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4.11.9

4.11.18

4.12

M)

b)

4.13

Ineome from Sharish non-compliant avenues

Income from Shariah non-compliant avenues is not recognized in the statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income and is classified as charity payable,

Marle-up income

Mark-up / retwn on deposits / investments is recognized on acerual basis using the effective
profit rate method,

Taxation and Levy

Levy

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of final taxes is not based
on taxable income, therefore, as per JAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for
Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the ICAP, these fall willin the scope of IFRIC 21
/ IAS 37 and accordingly have been classified as levy in these financial statements.

Income Tax

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted / corporate {ax rate
after taking into account tax credits and rebates available, il any, as per the Income tax
Ordinance, 2001,

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position method in respect of all
taxable lemporary differences avising from differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are recopnized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized, Deferred tax assets are reduced
to the extent it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried al cost.

For the purpeses of the statement of cash [ows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in
hiand and balances with banks in current, savings and deposit accounts,
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4.14

4.15

Profit distribution

Profit distiibution to the Modaraba’s certificate holders is recognized as a liability in the
financial statements of the year in which the distributions are approved by the Board of the
Management Company.

Certificate capital and earming per cerfificate

The Modaraba presents basic and diluted eamings per centificate data for its ordinary
cerlificates. Dasic emming per certificate is caleulated by dividing the profit and loss
altributable fo ordinary cerlificate holders of the Modaraba by the weighted average number of
certificates outstanding during the year. Diluted carning per cetificate is determined by
adjusting the profit and loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders and the weighted
average number of ordinary certificates outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
cudinary certificates, Ordinary certificates are classified as equity and are recorded at their
face value,
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MNofe
7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Compiiter software 71
PSX - Trading rights entitlement cerlificates
(TREC) 1.2
1.1 Computer software
Opening balance (cost)
Addition / (disposal)
Closing bakance
Arnortization
Opening balance
Charge for the year
Closing balance
Rate of Amortization
1.2 PSX - Trading rights entitlement

certificates (TREC)
Impairment of TREC e M|

June 30 June 30

2025 2024

e Rnpees—aee-
2,163,135 2,163,135
2,163,135 2,163,135
(2,163,135) (2,122,024)
. 41,111)

(2,163,135) (2,163,135)

3333% 33.33%
5,344,352 5,344,352

(5,344,352) (5.344,352)

7.2.1 Lahore Stock Exchange (LSE) membership card and room was obtained by the Modaraba in the
year 2010 against the settlement of certain outstanding balance of a defaulted party.

Pursuant to demulualization of TLSE, the membership card had been surrendered to the Exchange

against the following;

{a) 843,975 ordinary shares of face value of Rs.10 each of LSE: and

(b) Trading Rights Entitlement Certificates { TREC).

As per (he mechantsm prescribed by the LSE, the carrving value ol the membership card is

allocated as follows:
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Trading Right Entitlement
Certificate {TREC),
Broker's room

Ordinary shares of face value of Rs.
1 0/- each of |.SH

722
723

7.2.4

June 30 June 30
2025 2024
---------- Rupees-esemms=n=es
5,344,352 5,344,352
4,217,500 4,217,500
12,764,715 12,764,715
22,326,567 22326567

7.2.2 As per seetion 16 of the Stock Exchanges (Corporatization, Demutualization and Integration) Act,
2012, every TREC holder was required to register itself as a broker within two years of the date of
demutualization i.e. by Aupust 26, 2014, failure to which waould be resulled in the lapse of the
TREC. The mnpamrment has been recorded as the Modaraba did not register itself as a broker

before the expiry of the said date.

7.2.3 The carrying amount of the Broker's rooni is included in "property and equipment - own use”

under office premises (refer note 5).

71.2.4 The carrying amount of ordinary shares is included in "long teom investment” (refer note 12).

Current portion of Leasc liability against right-of-use asset

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following is the statement of investment propeity at the reporting date:

Description

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2025
Opening net beok value
Closing net book value
Gross carrying value basis
year ended Junce 30, 2025
Cost / revalued amount
(Gain from fair value adjustment
Closing net book value

Officc suite shops ;
(Note 8.1) (Note 8.2) Tl
Rupees rorevTY:
57,780,000 16,400,000 74,180,000
85,000,000 16,400,000 101,400,000
57,780,000 16,400,000 74,180,000
27,220,000 “ 27,220,000
___ 85,000,000 16,400,000 101,400,000
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8.1

82

8.3

8.4

Office suife Shops Total
Deseription (Note 8.1) (Note 8.2)
Rupees —~

Net emperying value basiy
year ended June 30, 2024

Opening net book value 57,780,000 16,400,000 74,180,000
Closing net book valoe 83,000,060 16,400,000 74,180,000
Grass earrying value basis '
year ended June 30, 2024

Cost / revalued amount 57,780,000 16,400,000 74,180,600

Gain from fair value adjustiment - - s
Closing net hook value 57,780,000 16,400,000 74,180,000

This represents two offices in Lakson Square, Kaachi, acquired through a seftlement agregment.

This represents four shops in Zarkoon Plaza, Sadar, Ruwalpindi acquited through a settlement

agreement,

Investment property is revalued by an independent valuer named Ocean Surveyors (Privatc)
Limited as at June 30, 2025, Fair value of office snite, Karachi and Zarkoon Plaza shops are based
on assumptions considered to be level 2 in the fair value hierarchy due to significant observable
nputs used in the valuation, Fair values have been derived considering factors like global
economie recession, general business environment, sales comparison approach, availability of
prospective buyers, life of the property, any difficulty in obtaining possession of the property efe.

Forced sales value of office suite, Karachi and Zavikoon Plaza shops as of June 30, 2025 amount fo
Rs. 68 million and Rs.12.30 million, respectively.

DIMINISHING MUSHARIKA

Secnred

Diminishing musharika finance - considered good
Dimmishing musharika finance - doubtful

Unearned Income

Less: Allowance [or expected credit loss

Less: Current portion of diminishing musharika

Page - 22

June 30
2025

199,124,508

June 3
2024

e rmmm e —r—a

810,793,660

12,430,060 14,468,381
(70,857,598)  (227,057,299)
340,696,970 598,204,742
{12,430,060) (14,468,381)
128,266,910 583,736,361

(138,189,603) (228,145,583)
190,077,307 355,500,778




S S

9.1

9.2

10

10.1

11

This represents diminishing musharika financing for a term of 3 to 5 years. These canry profit
rale ranging from 14.43% and 26.00% (JTune 2024: [4.00% and 28.58%). All diminishing
musharika arangements are secuved against hypothecation of assels, personal puarantees and
promissory notes,

June 30 June 30
2025 2024
MNoteg =~ ——— Rupees-----—-- -
Movement of Expeeted Credit Loss
Opening balance 14,468,381 539,959
(Reversal) / charge for the year (2,038,321) 13,802,247
Transfer from unearned income againsl suspended income - 126,175
Closing balance 12,430,060 14,468,381
WAKALA FINANCE
Secured, considered good
Waleala Finance 10.1 66,183,562 -

The Modaraba extended fucility of Rs. 100 million under the Wakala Financing arrangement to
one of the customer for participating in governnent project. As per terms of the facility, (he
Muodaraba acts as the ‘Principal’ and the eustomer act as an ‘Agent’ to participate in the
customer’s pool of assels connected with the povernment project assigned to the customer
through competitive bid mechanism, The deployment of funds under the finance facility is for
the period of twenty seven weeks, after commercial operation, with a weekly setllement and
redeployment of funds through the entire contiacted period.

The commercial operation of the project has not yet commenced due to falfilment of some
formalities and amount disbursed represents the seed investment lo initiate the project.

The principal has issued a pay order of Rs. 66,18 million to the government on the customer’s

behall’ The facility is secured against personal guaranice of the borrower and lien over the bank
account specifically marked for collection from the sale of pool assets.

TIJARAH FINANCE

Secured, considered good
Tijarah Finance ILL 16,250,000
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IL1 - This represents Tijarah Financing extended to a customer through Shariah Compliant
arrangement for discounting of the trade bills to meet the working capital requirement. The term
ol the [inancing represents the actual time period elapsed against recovery of the sale invoices
issued by the customer to the ultimale buyer in line with the respective credit terms of each
invoice,

The financing carry profit rate of 24.96% per annum, The facility is secured against assignment
of receivables in favor of the Modaraba, personal gunrantee of the customer and promissory note
for an eguivalent amount,

June 30 Juue 30
2025 2024
Note e LA L) | TE o
12 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Invesiment classified as “fair value through other
comprehensive income
Unlisted Companies 12.1 - -
Listed Companies 122 11,164,079 5.611.474
11,164,079 5,611,474
12.1  Unlisted companies - Prudential Securities Limited
June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30
2025 2024 2025 2024
------------ Rupeeps---reemeeas’
Number of shares
1,594,744 1,594,744 Cost 9,048,707 9,048,707
Impairment; 12.1.1 {9,048,707) (9,048,707)

- -

—
—T

12.1.1 The mvestment is fully impaired due to adverse [inancial conditions of the investee Company.
12.2  Listed Companies

June 30 June 30 June 30 June 3

2025 2024 2025 2024

------ —~Rnpegg-—----—-
Number of Shares
LSE Venture Limited
g42,810 842,810 Cost 9,450,764 9,450,764
Fair value adjustment 241,551 (4,604,607)

2.692,315 4 846,157

LSE Capita) Limited

245294 245294 Cost 3,313,951 1,913,05]
PPair value adjusinent (1,842,187)| | (2,548,631)
1,471,764 765,317

11,164,079 5,611,474
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13

13.1

13.1.1

13.2

13.2.]

14

June 31 June 30

2025 2024
Mote - Rupees----em---- --
LONG TERM ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS
Long tern advances 13.1 458,499 376,145
Long term deposits 13.2 3,253,300 488,300
3,711,799 3642445
Long term advanees
Seeured, considered goocl
To employees 13.1.1 1,112,268 1,421,724
Less: Current maturity (653.769)  (1,045,579)
458,499 376,145

This represents interest free loans to the employees as per terms of the employment which are
secured against provident find balances.

Long teym deposits
Margin deposit 13.2.1 3,000,000 3,000,000
Other deposits 3,253,300 488,300
6.253.300 3,488,300
Less: Provision against doubtful amounts _(3.,0600,000) (2.000,000)
3,253,300 488,300

This represent deposit was held with a defaulted broker, Prudential Securities Limited, whose
aperations have been ceased by PSX and (he Modaraba has filed a claim with the PSX for tlie
amount. Upon confirmation of the event of default, the provision was made accordingly.
DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

The deferred tax asset is atiributable to the following items

Deductible temporary differences

Tax losses carry forward 2,902,413 2,902,413
Alternate corporate tax 1,456,878 2,733,954
Long lerm investnients 240,095 1,072,986
Allowance for expeeted eredit loss 3,517,878 4,015,032

Taxable temporary differences
Property and equipment (5,489,694) (710,527)
2,627,570 10,013,865
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15

15.1

15.2

16

16.1

Nate

MODARABA, MUSHARTKA, MURABAHA
AND OTHER FINANCE

Modaraba, Musharika and Murabaha Finance
Considered pood
Considered doubtful 5.1

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 15.2

June 30 June 30
2025 2024
--------- Rupeeg-—-—--—-
446,019,606 | 446,294,606
446,019,606 446,294,606
(446,019,606)  (446,294,606)

This includes amount of Modaraba, Musharika and Morabaha finance receivable fioin varions
parties, outstanding since many years, Based on (he guidelines of Modaraba Regulations, 2021
outstanding balances against these finances have been fully provided and suspended accordingly.

Movement of Expected Credit Loss

Opening balance

Wiitlen off during the year

Reversal of provision during the year
Closing balance

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Amorhisad cost

Term Deposits Receipts - unsecured 16.1
Fair value through profit or loss
Listed securities 16.2

446,294,606 468,341,342
2 (21,641,736)
(275.000) (405,000)
46,019,606 446,294,606
14,257,836 16,957,897
14,257,836 16,957,897

The Modaraba had entered into an agreement dated Decentber 06, 2012, with the Invest Capital
Investment Bank Limited for setilement of the Term Deposit Receipt of Rs.10 millien. As per
the texms, the entire mark-up/profit/penalties acerued upto the date of setllement agrecinenl were
waived off by the Modaraba, The balance was reccivable in 60 equal monthly justalments of Rs.
166,667 beginning from December 10, 2012 which is interest fice, Rescheduled amount was as

follows:

Term Deposit Receipt as at December 06, 2012
Amortization charge

Received in earlier period

MNet receivable

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
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10,000,000 10,000,000
(2,000,000) (2,000,000)
(3,219,433) (3,219,433)
4,780,567 4,780,567
(4,780,567) (4,780,567)




16.2 Listed securities

Following is the detail of shares of listed entities held by the Modaraba at the reporting date:

Shaves of listed entities - Fully puid up vedinary sharce of Re. 10 cach, unless siated otherwise:

Jutre 30 June 30 June 30 Juae X0
2025 2024 2028 2024
Rupees
Nunibor of Shares Maine of luvestee Compnny / Fund Note
325 525 Nishat Mills Limited 0,87 17,196
54,207 54,367 The Hub Power Company Limited 7,492,316 B, 866,170
1,495 1495 Sui Northern Gas Pipcline Limited 174,481 04,688
1,468 6,468  Thal Limited 6,524,951 1.059,643
k2t 348  Hussain Industries Limited 16.2.1 - -
1,674,720 1OTET20  Prudentisl Stock Punsd 16.2.1
J60,000 300 Zeal-Pak Coment Factory Limited 1621 - -
2,103,523 203,923 14,257,836 16,257,897
16.2.1 Thess invesiee companics and funds are suspended or delisted in prior years, and accordingly
hawve been provided in full.
June 30 June 30
2025 2024
Note —mmemmmeee Rupees------evanes
17 IJARAH RENTAL RECEIVABLE
Considered good 5.668,113 1,571,434
Considered doubtful 62,108,225  61,847.457
67,776,338 63,418,891
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 172 (62,108.225) (61,890,169)
5,668,113 1,528,722
17.1 Future minimum ijarah renfals receivable
Within one year 157,321,001 27,935,395
After one year but not more than five years 11,697 465 19.0185,133
169,018,466 47,020 &
17.2 Movement of Expected Credit L.oss
Opening balance 61,890,169 61,847,457
Charge for the year 323,976 42,712
Reversal of provision during the year ) (105,920) -
Closing bhalance 62,108,225 61 ,Bﬂf], 11_5‘51 -
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18

18.1

June 30 June 30

20235 2024
Note e 141 1) [0 SRR
RECEIVABLE AGAINST SALE OF
AGRICULTURE PRODUCE - SECURED
Considered doubtful 18.1 46,011,658 46,011,658
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (46,011,658) (46,011,658)

During the year 2016, KASD Modaraba (merged Modaraba) and Wasl Mobility Modaraba
(formerly First Prudential Modaraba) entered into a joint project for crushing of banola seed
and sale of oil cake (Khal) in the market. M/s Pakistan Phutfi International Limited (PPIL) was
engaged as seller and service provider, responsible for sale of agriculture produce.
Subsequently, natural cyelical shortage in productivity of cotton crop affected the availability
of the banola seed and therefore, the project was discontinued by the management to safeguard
the interest of the Modaraba.

As per settlement sgreement dated April 27, 2016, with PPIL for the payment of advance for
purchase of banola seed was converted into ijarah finance (secured) leaving a balance of
Rs.46.012 million receivable against sale of agriculture produce. Receivable amount is secured
against vegistered mortgage on property of service provider. After continuous default of
payment, the management of Modaraba has filed recovery suils in the Banking Courts which is
pending adjudication. The management and the legal counsel are optimistic on favorable
outcome of the case. However, on prudent basis the management has fully provided the
cutstanding balance, The details of receivables are as under:

Rupees
Initial investment 132,000,000
Gain on sale of agriculture praduce 2,650,000
Receipt against sale of agriculture produce (28,827,022)
Converted (o [jarah financing (59,311,320}
Consultancy charges (500,000}
46,011,658
Allowance for expected credit loss (46,011,658}

Closing Balance - -
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19

19.1

19.1.1

ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Cousidered grod Comtldered douwltlol Tarial
Junc 2025 Jome 234 Juize 2025 Jure 2034 June 2035 Jue 2024
MNule - A e L e
Advanes
To steff - Secured 171 A T00 1,045 579 1,814 M (RAT R v 2 46T, 760 1835519
Agind purshass of assels 1932 28168955 : _ g 3R 168,548 5
Prepaymenis 258|095 87,608 - - 2,551,003 087698
Crilier recelvables from
Brokess on aceown
of sk o shres 19.3 - - TE 005 768 T8 595 768 TE095 T58 V8,055,768
- of pdvarce for shargs 19.4 15432373 18,432,173 15,432,273 18 432,273
A lank 1.5 . - 16,241,347 10,241,247 IC,241 347 10,241,347
Return on deposile with bmks 1375031 2,504,550 % a [ 225,020 2,594 950
[ HITTEY 42 65 117 591 18 381 S 13 V81,580 1| B 856 15,499,182
Bul tatal 6327306 4, 745410 F26,564 978 126,964 578 163,197,184 131,710,397
Leas: Allowance foz expecied credil loss . . (126.964.978)  (125964,978) _ (136384,978) _ {126,964 578}
}ﬁ!ghl'lm'r 4.‘41.‘-‘.4]9 . . ]+ g? 2 4 745419

The employees balances are secured against Provident Fund (PF) balances of employees.

The doubtful amount of Rs.1.8 million was paid to ex-managing director of the Modaraba
without prior approval of the board of directars of previous Modaraba Management Company
(Prudential Capital Management Limited) for the purchase of a motor vehicle, The Modaraba
has initiated legal proceedings for the recovery of said amount from the ex-managing director.

This represents the advance paid to various suppliers against the purchase of Jjarah assets.

This includes claim of Rs. 64.62 million receivable from a broker Investee Securities Limited,
defaulted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. Varicus proposals were initiated in past but none of
them were materialized for seltlement. In one of the proposal, the said broker has offered /
transferved shares and certificates of following entities which were not acknowledged by the
than Management aof the Modaraba, owing to the weak financial position of the enlities and
sighificance of the ameount of claim. Accordingly, the management of the Modaraba has not
accepted the shares / cerlificales as satisfaction of claim and same is not recorded in the books
of account. Detail of shares / cerlificates offered / transferred is as under:

Name of entities No. of shares /

certificates
Zeal-Pak Cement Factory Limited 10,400,000
Usman Textile Mills Limited 700,000
Fitst Investec Modaraba 500,000
Investec Securities Limited 200,000
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19.4

185

20

21

21.1

This also includes an amount receivable from Prudential Securities Limifed{ PSL) and Pcarl
Capital Management Limited (PCML) on account of advance for purchase of securities
amounting to Rs.l million and other receivable amounting to Rs.11.475 million. Since
operations of PSL & PCMIL were suspended and keeping in view the remote chances of
recovery, provision against the full amount has been recorded,

This amount includes Rs. 17.889 million paid as advance for purchase of securities from
Prudential Sceurities Limited (PSL). Remaining amount of Rs, 0,54 million is blocked in CDC-
sub account of the said broker against various shares.

Name of companies No. of Shares
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited 500
Javed Omer Vohra & Company Limited 1,000
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 2,100

Opetations of PSL have been ceased by PSX and the Modaraba has filed a claim with the PSX
for the whole amount. However, as there is no recoveries of the amount ascertain, the provision
was made accordingly.

This represents an unauthorised amount dehited to Modaraba's account by a scheduled
commercial bank on behalf of a party considered to be a group Company. The Modaraba filed
a suit for recovery under the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, XLV] of
2001 which was deerced against the Modaraba only due to the reason that it was time-barred.
The management of the Modaraba filed an appeal in the Honoutable High Court of Sindh
(HCS) against the judgment of the Banking Court.

The HCS has set aside the decree of the Banking Court with the ditections that the Banking,
Court, in the first instance, shall decide the application for leave to defend moved by (he Bank.
The case is under process with the Banking Coutt.

June 30 June 30
2025 2024
Note comvssesss Rupeeg---—=-nman--
TAXATION - NET
Advance tax 35,305,012 36,363,930
Provision for taxation (1,032,318 (7,354,343)
3 4,2_?'2{.&514 19‘,1'.]1]9,5 87
BANK BALANCES i
Balances with banks
Current accounts 31,645,876 32,053,013
Saving accounts 21.1 129,591,236 199,710,919

161,237,132 231,763,932

The balance in saving accounts carry profit at an average rates ranging from 3.04% to 17.00%
per annum (June 30, 2024: 6.00% to 18.50% per anaum).
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22 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED, AND PAID UP CERTITICATE CAPITAL

June 30 June 30, June 30 June M
2025 2024 2025 1024
Mo, of certificates Rupees
Anthorized Certficate Capiial
1522 17,600 152217680  Modorba cenificeles ofRe. 10 each 1,522,176,600  _1,522,176,600
LEgued, sulscribed and poétup Cer tificate Capltal
13,451,650 13,451,650  Modaraba centificates of Be.10
each fully paid n cash 134,516,500 134,516,508
Modareba cerificates of Re. 13-cach
b R [ 8,864,716 fully paid bonus cerificates BE,647, 160 BE047.160
64,001,294 AL00LIM Modaruba cerificates of R 10V czch bsued undee
sohem: of srrangenent for merger with Second and
Thikd Frodential Modamba Sl 2 o0 AT L2, (0

42 17,016 421740014 Modaraba cestificates [zsucd wnder Schemes of
Merger with KASE Modomba and First Pak

Modaraba 421, 0, 160 421,740,160

L293,916,760  1,093,916,760

129,391,676 129,291,676

As at June 30, 2025, Wasl Modaraba Management Limited (Formerly Awwal Modaraba
Management Limited), the management company, held 12,939,167 (June 30, 2024:
12,939,167) cerlificales of Rs. 10/- each.

June 30 June 30
2025 2024
Naote Bt 1 411 117 B -
23 RESERVES
Capital reserves
-Merget reserve (208,031 .24{:-)‘ (208,031,240)
-Statutory reserves 157,982,325 157,982,325

(50,048,015)  (50,048,915)

Revenue reserves

-Accumulated loss (494,518,168) (486,013,717}

(344,567,083) (536,062,632)

24 UNREALIZED LOSS ON REVALUATION OF INVESTMENTS
Loss on revaluation at beginning of the
year - net of tax (6,080,254) (3,757,902)
Surpluz / (loss) on revaluation classified at - -
income during the year - net of tax 5,312,509 (2,322,352)
24.1 (767,745) (6,080,254)
24.1 The surplus on revaluation of investments is presented under a separate head below equily as

'Surplus on Revaluation of Investments' in accordance with the requirements of Circular No.
SC/M/PRDD/PRs/2017-259 dated December 11, 2017.
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25.1

25.2

26

27

27.1

June 30 June 30

2025 2024
MNofe — — ==e—eemee- Rupees-----=-an=-=
LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT-OF-USE
ASSETS
Addition during the year 31,049,112 -
Finance cost for the year 1,085,837 -
Payments made during the year (5,023,575) -
Closing balance 27,111,374 .
Current maturily (7,621,479) -
19,489,895 -

The Modaraba has entered into lease agreements for the various offices on a rental basis. These
were initially measured at the present value of lease payments, discounted using the
Modaraba's incremental borrowing rate at 12.3% per anmum. The lease liabilities are
subsequently being measured at amortised cost using the effective profit rate method,

Details of minimum lease payments and the maturity analysis are as follows:

2025
Present value of
minimum lease

Minimum lense
paymecnts

payment
Mot Later than one year 10,341,809 7.621.479
Later than one vear but not Jater than five years y 21,395,398 10,485,895
31,737.207 27,111,374
June 30 June M)
2025 2024
LIARAH DEPOSITS e Rupees-------m—- -—
Tjarah deposils 86,832,529 32,551,930
Less; Current portion ijaral deposit (24,747 ,430) (10,688,681)
64,085,009 21,863,249
SHORT TERM FINANCE 27.1 150,000,000 lﬁﬁiﬂﬂlﬂ_lﬂﬂﬂ

The Modaraba received an amounl of Rs. 150 million from Pak Brunei Investment Company
Ltd (PBICL) under Wakalat-ul- Istismar Agreement dated December 30, 2021. This facility is
rengwed every year upon maturily by both the parties for further period throngh addendums to
the Wakala Agreement. The facility has been rencwed through fifth addendum till December

27, 2025.
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28.1

282

As per terms of the facility agreement, the PBICL acts as Muwakil (the Principal) and
Modaraba act as a Wakil (the agent) to execute the Shariah Compliant (ransactions through and
as part of the Wakil's Pool of assets for deployment of funds under the extended facility.
Return the Muwakil on investment is expecled at 3 months KIBOR + 2% per annum,

The facility is secured by way of hypothecation charge over current / fixed assets, assipnment
of reccivables (only on cccurence of event of default / termination) in favor of PBICL and
equitable mortgage over the immovable properties.

Juue 30 June 30
2025 2024
-------- --Rupees-—-------—
ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses 3,154,643 2,987,656
Modaraba Company's remuneration 34 4,503,518 7,126,101
Sales Tax on Management
Company's remuneration 35 3,912,551 3,237,023
Shared service cost - 772,991
Takaful premium payable - 2,380,732
Workers' welfare fund 28.1 4,358,018 4,986,115
Charity payable 28.2 155,134 35,177
Client share against financing 2,107,650 15,422
Others 12,832,860 11,756,218
31,024,374 33,297,435

The Sindh Assembly passed a bill on May 04, 2015 and notified Sindh Worker's Welfare Act
2014 (the SWWF Act) on June 4, 2015, As per the said SWWF Acl the applicability of Sindh
Worker's Welfare Fund is effective from the Anancial year of the entities ended on or alter May
31, 2013, Accordingly, provision las been made at the rate of 2% of profit before taxation or
taxable income, whichever is higher, effective after June 30, 2014. During the year, an amount
of Re, 797,123 (2024: Rs.1,425,220) have been provided which shall be paid 1o the Federal
Government under WWE Ordinance, 1971 in accordance with order passed by High Court of
Sindh vide its order dated January 21, 2025, as mentioned in note 29.1 4.

This includes amounts relating to charity accrued on various non-Shariah compliant avenues.
The management ulilizes the balances as per the requirements of Clause VI of circular no & of
2012 (Shari’sh Compliance and Shari’ah Audit Mechanism) for modarabas.

Opening balance 35,177 396,346
Amount accrued during the year 1,588,205 578,220
1,623,382 074,566
Paid / adjusted during the year (1,468,248) (939,389)
{Closing balance 155,134 35,177
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9.1

29.1.1

29.1.2

29.1.3

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

Taxation officer while making assessment in vespect of tax years 2006, 2007 and 2008
disallowed certain expenses on account of apportionment between normal and presumpfive
income and created an additional demand of Rs. 6.53 million. The Modaraba filed an appeals
and hence, no provision has been made in these financial statements in this regard as the
management is confident that outcome of the appeals will be decided in favour of the
Modaraba.

The Modaraba received a letler dated October 01, 2018 from the Assistant Cornmissioner (Unit-
12) of the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB), wherein, it 1s mentioned that through scrutiny of the
financial statements of the Modaraba (for the periods from July 2011 to March 2018 fiscal year
years 2012-2017), it came to their notice that the Modaraba is engaged in providing / rendering
taxable services which falls vnder the Sceond Schedule of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act,
2011 (the S5TS Act), and the sales tax on such services, i.c. on lease rentals / lease financing
transactions remains outstanding which aggregated to Rs, 29.527 million. Such letters were
also received by some other Modarabas and it was collectively decided that under the
supervision of NBFI and Modaraba Association Pakistan, a petition against the same was liled
through a commeoen legal counsel wilh Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS) challenging levy
of Scryvices Sales Tax on lease rentals / lease financing transactions including the vires of
various headings of the Second Schedule of the Act. A stay order in this regard was granted by
the HCS stating that no adverse order in respect of the proposed treatment shall be made

against the Petitioners.

The HCS has disposed of the pelition vide order dated February 02, 2025. The
petitioner/respondent are directed to proceed in the matter without coercive action against the

petitioner, after providing opportunity of hearing.

Modaraba filed an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue on November (46,2023
against the assessment order of the First Pak Modaraba (Merged NModaraba) for the lax year
2017. The taxation officer erroncously concluded that in the said tax year modaraba acquired
vehicles of Rs. 19.98 million which were not appearing in the financial statements as fixed
assets, therefore considered as “Unexplained Investments” as per section 111 (1)(b) of the
Income Tax Ordinance 2001 and created demand amounted to Rs. 6 million, It was explained
that the said vehicles were acquired for financing 1o the customers, therefore, appearing under
the head of “Diminishing Musharika Finance” in accordance with the nature of transaction and
reporting framework of Islamic Financial Accounting 8tandard. The Taxation officer and CIR
Appeal did not serve proper notices as these were sent to the office of the previeus
management company in Isiamabad. Initiating the administrative action, the tax authorities
blocked the Bank account of the Merged Modaraba.
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The manapement is confident that outcome of the appeal with the tribunal will be decided in
favor of the Modaraba as facts ave simple and proper opportunities of being heard were not
provided by the Taxation officer.

During the year 2024, the Modaraba received notices from Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) for the
payment of SWWEF liability as provided and disclosed in the respective financial stalements.
The payments of SWWF wete held because one of the other modaraba under the previous
management filed a pelition in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (HCS) against the
applicability of SWWF Act. Other modarabas in the industry also filed the similar petitions.
During the year 2020, the HUS passed the order for depositing the SWWF pertaining to the
Sindh operations cither with Nazir or with the SEB.

Accordingly, upon receipt of the notices from SRB the modaraba paid the total amount of
SWWTF (pertains to Sindh operations) from 2016 to 2023,

The Deputy Commissiener-SRB while framing the order, imposed additional tax computed @
15% per annom for the period of [iability remained unpaid. The fotal amount of additional tax
from the year 2016 to 2022 is Rs. 875,575,

The modaraba filed an appeal with the tribunal for condonation of the additional tax imposed
by the Deputy Commissioner as total due amount of SWWF has been paid to SRB upon receipt
of notices without any contest even though case filed in the HCS by the other modarabas was

pending,

The High Court of Sindh vide its oxder dated January 21, 2025 has disposed off the petilion in
licu of the decision of Council of Common Interest, whereby it was held that WWF should
remain with the Federal Government to perform its functions under WWF Ordinance 1971,
Accoidingly, Modaraba commenced the payiment to the Federal Government from the current

vear in compliance of the HCS order.

Commitment

There was no commitment as at the reporting date ( June 30, 2024: Nil)

June 30 June 30
2025 2024
---------- Rupees------------
OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Documentation charges and others 47,500 959,609
Termination charges on diminishing Musharika/ Jjarah 758,329 286,671

Takaful contribution of assets related to finance
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facilities (Net)
Misecellanecous Income

Income from non financial assets

Gain on disposal of property and equipment -fjarah
(Gain on disposal of propeity and equipment - Own

REVERSAL OF ALLOWANCE FOR
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS

Meodaraba, morabaha finance and other finance

ljara finance

Diminishing musharika finanece

Reversal against provision / suspension

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

salaries, allowances and benefits
Fees and subscription

Repairs and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Registrar services

Telephone and postage
Travelling and conveyance
Depreciation - own use assets
Depreciation - right- of-use assets
Amortization - Intangible assels
Anditors' remuneration
Electricily, water and gas
Printing and stationery

Vehicles running

Legal and professional
Entertainment

Advertisement

Takaful

321
323

5.1
5

32.2

Reimbursement of common expenses
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June 30 June 30
2025 2024
------ —-Rupees-—me-me-
3,830,631 163,313
306,041 1,145,336
4,942,502 2,554,929
256,311 " 266,811
304,250 -
500,561 260,811
5,503,062 2,821,740
275,000 405,000
105,920 -
2,038,321 -
- 418,748
2419241 R23.748
39,789,814 30,820,190
5,148,507 3,589 3890
5,410,129 3,544,576
2,482,014 2,781,297
804,999 636,984
805,719 418,280
2,830,196 236,375
1,748,522 260,742
3,510,948
- 41,111
1,452,000 1,320,000
1,063,815 025,925
588,322 718,173
13,500 5,180
2,074,449 2,200,930
428,503 596,473
274,600 274,645
874,343 864,861
- 3,571,209



321

32.2

33

June 20 June 30

2025 2024
-—-—-—Rupees-—---—---- -
Shared services cost 8,053,245 9,525,535
Miscellaneous 541,629 235.934
77,895,255 62,568,311
Remuneration of officers and other employecs
2025 2024
Olficers Oiher Totul Officers Dther Total
employees eniployees
e nN |11 SESPESREE sannmanmrmesnmme s UNJIEEFsnemrnn s mmnmanee
Remunetation 23,303,305 0,287,664 32,590,969 15031,707 13,071,756 28,103,463
Provident fund 716,175 349 381 1,066,056 273,4H 338,762 012,256
Terminal Benelils - - - - 164,852 l6d4,852
Medical 514,234 173,839 E8R.073 75,200 454,163 519,369
Fugl 2,813,693 2,050,663 4,964,356 903,717 276,683 1,186,400
Chhiers 00,650 1897110 280,360 44 800 155,050 239,850
27,538,057__12,050,057 30789814 16318924 14,501,266 30,820,190
Mo, of persons 9 16 25 2 12 14
Jumne 30 June 30
2025 2024
—————— Rupees-----------
Auditors' remuneration
Statutory audil 990,000 900,000
Half year review 396,000 360,000
Review of code of corporate governance 66,000 ¢0,000

1,452,000 1,320,000

Shariah Advisor's Fee

This includes an amount of Rs.396,750 ( 2024 : Rs.339,00) pertained (¢ the Shariah advisoi's
fee.

FINANCE CHARGES
Bank charges 45,192 12,574
Return on short term finance 25,621,505 36,431,252
Finance cost on lease liability against right-of-use asset 1,085,837 -

26,752,534 36,443,826
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June 30 June 30

2025 2024
MNote e L4111 T SR -
MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S REMUNERATION
Management Company's remmuneration 4,503,518 7,126,101
4,503,518 7,126,101

The Modaraba Management Company is entitled to a remuneration for services rendered fo the
Modaraba under provisions of the Modaraba Companies and Medarabas (Floatation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980 up to a maximum of 10% per annum of the net annual profits of the
Modaraba.

PROVISION FOR SERVICE SALES TAX ON MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S
REMUNERATION

The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) has imposed Sindh Sales Tax (SST) on the Modaraba
Management Company's remuneration with effect from November 01, 2011, However, certain
modaraba management companies have approached the Honowable High Court of Sindh
(HCS) and Appellate Tribunal of SRB, challenging the levy of SST on management company's
remuneration. The Modaraba Management Company has not received any demand notice from
SRB for payment of 58T on Management Company's remuneration and based on legal
advisor's opinion previously obtained by one of the Modarabn under common management,
can neither file any petition challenging the levy of SST on Management Company's
remunération nor can join the proceedings of pending petition in the HCS. As a matler of
abundant caution the management is accruing SST on Management Company's remuneration
and will discharge the Hability on direction of the HCS based on outcome of the petition filed
by other Modaraba Management Companies.

TAXATION AND LEVY
Levy 36.1 567441 157,928
Taxation 36.2 8,178,518 0,407,141
8745959 9,565,069

This represents final taxes paid under the provision of (he Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 and TAS 37.

Taxafion
Current 1,032,318 7,354,343
Deterred a 7,146,200 2,052,798

8,178,518 9,407,141
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June 30 June 30

2025 2024
Naote el L4 11 1157 LR -
Relationship between (ax expense and
pecounting profit
Profit before tax 39059011 71,261,009
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% 11,327,113 20,665,693
Tax effect of income taxed at lower rate (650,932) (310,252)
Tax effect of permanent differences due to
reversal of provision and tax loss on sale of ijarah asset 4,142,369 1,311,672
Tax effect of permanent differences due to
tax losses, and revaluation of property/
investiment and allernative corporate tax (6,640,032) (12,259.972)
B,178,518 9.407,141

%#-

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of
taxation after taking into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if

any.

June 34, Jume 30,
2025 2024
EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND
DILUTED
Frofit for the year (Rupees) 30,313,052 61,695,940
Weighted average number of certificates 179,391 ;ﬁ'}'ﬁ 129!391 ,076
Barning per cerlificate
(Rupee) 0.23 0.48

Diluted

Diluted earnings per certificate has not been presented as the Modaraba does not have any
convertible instruments in issue as at reporting date which would have any effect on the
earnings per certificate if the option to convert is exercised.
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39.1

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Modaraba’s prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Modaraba’s ability
to confinue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide optimum returns to its
certificate holders’ and benefils of other stake holders and to maintain a strong capital base to
support the sustained development of its businesses,

"The Modaraba manages ils capitai to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concem
while maximising the retamn 1o stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. As al reporting date, the Modataba has short term finance facility and has sufficient
surplus funds to manage the affairs of the Modaraba effectively, Further, the Modaraba has a
positive curtent ratio of 1.73:1 (2024: 2.07:1).

Consistently with others in the industry, the Modaraba monitors capital on the basis of the debt:
to-adjusted capital ratio, This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital, The
Modaraba is not subject to extemally exposed capilal requirement. The pearing ratio of the
Madaraba at the year end is as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024
Debis 150,000,000 150,000,000
Bank balances (161,237,132) (231,763,932)
Net debt (11,237,132) (81,763.932)
Equity 749,349,677 757,854,128
Net debt to equity ratio (0.0142):1 (0.1079):1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management policies

The Modaraba's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks liquidity risk, credit risk and
market risk (including profit rate risk and other price risk). The Board of the Management
Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Modaraba's risk
management framework.

The Modaraba's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Modaraba's financial

performance,
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The Modaraba’s principal financial liabilities comprise [jara deposits, short texn finance and
other liabilities. The Modaraba's principal financial assels comprise of ijarah rentals receivable,
diminishing musharika finance, wakala finance, tijarah finance and cash and bank balances that
arrive directly frem its operations. The Modaraba also holds investments classified as fair
value through profit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and at amortised

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is (o ensure, as far
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stress conditions, without incutring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Modaraba's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilifies

at the reporting date:

More than
; Uptothree  three months  Move than
Total
months & up to one ane year
year
June 30,2025 s e e Rupees -=-=-emwme—meesaca
Financial liabilitles
Short term finance 150,000,000 - 150,000,000 -
ljara deposits 88,832,529 24,747,430 64,085,099
Other liabilities 31,024,374 31,024,374 - -
269,856,903 311,024,374 174,747,430 64,085,099
June 30,2024
Financial liabilities
Short term finance 150,000,000 - 150,000,000 -
ljara deposits 32,551,930 - 10,688,681 21,863,249
Other liabilities 41,907,083 41,907,083 - -
224459013 41,907,08) 160,688,681 21,863,249

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counter party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the Modaraba by failing to discharge its obligation. The Modaraba’s policy is to enter into
financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance with the internal guidelines and
regulalor requirements. The modaraba has reassessed it's portfolio as at June 30, 2025 and none
of it's customers require further downgrading on subjective basis.
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Exposure to credit risk

The Modaraba’s maximum exposure to credil risk related to receivable at June 30, 2025 and

June 30, 2024 is the carrying amounts of following financial assets,

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024
------- -Rupees--—--------
Bank balances 161,237,132 231,763,932
Diminishing Musharaks Finance 328,266,910 583,736,361
Wakala Finance 66,183,562 -
Tijarah Finance 16,250,000 -
Tjarah rentals receivable 5,668,113 1,528,722
Long term advances and deposits 3,711,799 864,445
Advances and other receivables 5,307,156 3,757,721
586,624,672 821,651,181

The analysis below summarises the quality rating of the major Banks in which the Modaraba

deals.
June 30, June 34,
2025 2024
-------- = RUP CCF=mmmmmmmmm
Bank name Short Term Long Term
HBL islamic Baoking Limited Al AAA 0,045,247 47,200,902
Dubal [slanic Bank Pakistan Lid A=l AA 113,197,617 173,192,632
Albarakna Bank {Pakiston) Limited A=l At Q39,736 939,136
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ Ad 427,620 5181176
Bank Islami Limited Al AA- 680918 689,218
Bank Makramal Limited A-3 BRR- 5,036,994 3,822,963

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration is the relalive sensitivity of the Modaraba's performance to developments

affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

Coneentration of risks arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered
into with the same counterparty, or where a number of counterpartics are cngaged in siniilar
business activilies, or activities in thie same geographic region, or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similatly affected

by changes in economic, political or other conditions,
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39.4.1

The Modaraba manages concentration of credit risk exposure through diversification of
portiolio of its customers to avoid undue concentration of risk with specific industry, sector, or
group as follows:

2025 2024
Sechs Tupees %o ROPEESssnmnn =emsmmafunemm
Diminishing Musharika
Fimanca
Enginecring & Allied producty 07,646,926 28.66% 81,770,246 13.67%
Fhemmnceuticol 7,332,813 2.15% 51,777,979 B.66%
Ol andl gas dislribulion 10,416,252 3.05% 14,415,292 241%
Media network 16,053,578 4.71% 20,463,890 342%
Dairles and poullry - 0.00% 33,000,000 5.92%
Transport & comnanication 145,867,642 42.81% 272,005,704 45.47%
pllscolloneous 3,380,770 18.61% 124,766,632 H.86%
340,656,970 100.00% 508,204,743 100%%
Ijnrah Ninnncing
Transports and sommunication 5,354,117 93.17% 1,383,939 0053 %
Medin Network 271,996 4330 144,783 247%
5,668,113 J 0. (Y B 1,528,722 1%
Waliala Finance
Govemment sector 66,183,562 10000 - i
Thjarah Finance
Marketing and advertising 16,250,000 100,004 _ = 0%
Market risk

Marlcet risk is the risk that the fair value or futore cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in markel variables such as profit rates, foreign exchange rates and
other prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Partlculars Fair Value Fnir Value
2025 2024
--------------- {IRAUPEes) ~w==-amam=m==n=
Long term investiments 11,164 079 5,011,474
Short term investments 14,257,836 16,957,897
25.421,215 22,569,371

Profit pate rvisk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in the markel profit rates. Majority of profit beaing linancial
instruments are reset within three to six months to prevailing KIBOR 1hercby limiting exposure

in this respect,
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June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
c—eeanasuman—n RUpPee§amsnmnmmmmmmemmne
a) Variable rate instrument
Financial Assets
Diminishing Musharika Finance 328,266,910 583,736,361
Wakala Finance 66,183,562 .
Tijarah I'inance 16,250,000 -
Ijarah rentals receivable 5,668,113 1,528,722
Bank balance 251,763,932 231,763,532

648,132,517 817,029,015

Finanecial liahilitics

Short term financing 150,000,000 150,000,000

b) There are no fixed rate instruments as at reporting date.
Fair value sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

An increase of 100 basis points in profit rates would have increased / decreased the profit and
[oss by the amounis shawn below. Reduction in profit rates by 100 basis points would have a
vice versa impact. This analysis assumes that all variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for the comparative period.

(fnerease / Changes in profit / (loss)

Decrease)
June 30, June 30,
() 2025 2024

~~~~~~~~~~~ (Rupees)=sr-sememmremme
Agsels
Diminishing Musharika Finance 100 basis points 8,163,386 16,000,274
Wakala Finance 100 basis points - -
Tijarah Finance 100 basis points 1,129 -
Tjarah rentals receivable 100 basis points 3,114,798 2,955,732
Bank balances 100 basis puints 2,829,450 798,946
Linbility
Short term financing 100 basis points 2,562,151 3,643,125

Above sensitivitics are calenlated on the assumption that all factors remain constant excepl
profit rates and resulting variation in fair values of the subjugated instruments and impact on

the statement of profit and loss,
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The Modaraba monitors the profit rate environment on a regular basis and alters the portfolio
mix of fixed and floating rate securities.

The Madaraba's policy requires the Modaraba management fo manage this risk by measuring
the mismatch of the profit rate sensitivity gap of financial assets and liabilities and enlculating
the average duration of the porifolio of fixed profit securities.

The average effective duration of the Modaraba's portfolio is a measure of the sensitivity of the
fair value of the Modaraba's variable profil securities to changes in market profit rates,

The Modaraba's policy refrains from holding profit bearing instruments that induce the average
effective duration of the variable profit portfolio to pass the benchmark of the average duration.

Other price risk

fluetuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or
currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market. The Modaraba’s investment in listed equity securities are susceptible to market price
risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The Modaraba
manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total
equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Modaraba’s senior
management on a regular basis. The Modaraba's Investment Committee reviews and approves

all equity investment decisions.

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024
.......... Rupees-----------
The carrying amount of investment is as follows:
In listed sceuritics carricd at fair value
through profit or loss 14,257,836 16,957,897
In listed security carried at fair value through other
comprehensive income 11,164,079 5,611,474

25,421,815 22,569,371

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decreasze in market value of investinents on
the Modaraba's profit after tax and on equity, The analysis is based on the assumption that the
market price had increased/decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant and all

Maodaraba's equity instruments moved on perfect correlation with the market.
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Index Impact on profit and equity

2025 2024
-------- —-Rupees------------
Inerease in market value - 5% 1,271,096 1,128,469
Decrease in market value - 3% (1,271,096) (1,128,469)

Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from & wide variety of causes
associated with the processes, technology and infrastructure supporting the Modaraba’s
operations either internally within the Modaraba or externally at the Modaraba's service
providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment
management behavior. Operational risks atise from all of the Modaraba’s activities.

The Modaraba's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial
losses and damage 1o its reputation with achieving its objective of generating returns for
certificate holders. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of
controls over aperational risk rests with the Board of Directors of the Management Company.
'I'his responsibility encompasses the conirols in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and
responsibilities;

- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- documentation of controls and procedures;

- requircments for the periodic assessment of operalional risks faced, the adequacy of controls
and procedures to address the risks identified,

- ethical and business standards;

- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of gnidance under IFRS for all
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurement where such
measurements are required as permitted by other IFRSs. It defines fair value as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price),

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices
prevailing on the statement of assets and liabilities date. The estimated fair value of all other
financial assets and financial liabilities is considered not significantly different from book
value,

Page - 46



The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analyzed between
those whose fair value is based on:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilitics.

those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as

Level 2: - s
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at reporting date, the Modaraba held the following financial instruments measured at fair
values:
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41 FINARCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Flunncial Assoty
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The related parties of the Modaraba comprise of the Management Company and its Holding
Company, other associated companies, stalf retirement funds, Directors and Key Management
Personnel. Transactions with related pariies are carried out at agreed rates as approved by the Board
of Management Company.,

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Modaraba, The Modaraba considers its Chief Financial
Officer and business heads to be ils key management personnel, There are no transactions with key
management personnel other than their terms of employment / entitlement. Details of certificate
helding of Holding Company, Management Company, Directars, Key Management Personnel and
their family members are disclosed in pattern of certificate holding included in the atnual repott of

the Modaraba,

Transactions during the year:

Name of the Company Nature of Transactions  June 30, June 30,
2025 2024
R —Rupeegs--caseeas

Expense  (income) during the year

Stall Provident Fund Contribution made 1,066,057 612,256
Wasl Modaraba Management Limited ~ Management Company's

(formerly Awwal Modaraba remuneration

Management Limited) 4,503,518 7,126,101

Payments / (receipts) made during the

year
Staff Provident Fund Contribution made 1,066,057 612,256
Wasl Modaraba Management Limited ~ Management Company's 7,126,101 9,629,014
(formerly Awwal Modaraba remuneration

Management Limited)
Balances af year end

Wasl Modaraba Management Limited  Management Company's
(formerly Awwal Modaraba remunetation payable
Management Limited) 4,503,518 7,126,101

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified wherever necessary for the purpose of
comparison and better presentation. There were no major reclassifications in these financial
stalements.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The totzl number of employee's as at the reporting date are 25 (2024: 14) and the average number of
employees during the year equates to 14 (2024: 13).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors have proposed dividend for the year ended June 30, 2025 of Rs. NIL
per certificate (2024: Re. *0.30”), amounting to Rs_ pJjL _(2024: Rs.38,817,503) at their meeting
held on 29:09-  2025. The linancial stalements for the year ended June 30, 2025 do not

include the effect of the above which will be sccounted for in the period in which it is declared.

GENERAL
Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless olherwise stated.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION

' 29-09-2025
These financial statements were autharised for issue on . by the Board of
Directors of the Management Company, {2,._

For Wasl Modaraba Management Limited (Formerly Awwal Modaraba Management Limited)

(Management Company)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Page - 53



Pattern of Certificates Holding

As At June 30, 2025
NUMBER CERTIFICATES TOTAL

OF HOLDING CERTIFICATE
CERTIFICATES FROM TO HOLDING

4775 I = 100 233.410

4042 101 500 902,069

3363 501 1000 2.547.052

2605 1001 5000 5741378

511 5001 10000 3.884.292

22 10001 15000 2,717521

243 15001 30000 5,244,472

176 30001 60000 7,989,530

95 60001 - 100000 7.948.725

79 100001 - 200000 12,689,757

11 200000 - 250000 2,450,183

13 250001 - 300000 3.994326

12 300001 - 400000 3.451.114

7 400001 - 500000 3,322,146

5 500001 - 600000 2.779.817

6 600001 - 700000 3,894 603

4 700001 - 900000 3,151,571

1 900001 - 1000000 1.000,000

4 1000001 - 1500000 4.734 631

2 1500001 - 2500000 3,778,030

1 2500001 - 33500000 2.958.972

2 3500001 - 4300000 $.540.500

1 10520001 - 10525000 10,321,203

1 11975001 - 11980000 11,977,199

1 12935001 - 12940000 12.939.167
16182 Total 129,301,676




Pattern of Certificates Holding

As At June 30, 2025
S/R CATAGORIES OF NUMBER OF TOTAL PERCENTAGE %
NO. CERTIFICATE HOLDERS CERTIFICATES HOLDERS. CERTIFICATES.
1 INDIVIDUALS 16,086 97,380,203 75.26%
z [t {’“:;[:‘:f;:i’i] 1 12,939,167 10.00%
3 INVESTMENT COMPANIES 1 884 0.00%
4 INSURANCE COMPANIES 4 2,289,233 1.77%
5 JOINT STOCK COMPANIES 45 16,154,563 12.49%
& FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 39 218,225 0.17%
7 CHARITABLE TRUSTS q 23,000 0.02%
8 MUTUAL FUND 1 241,555 0.19%
9 OTHERS 4 144 746 0.11%
| Tom 16,182  129301,676|  100.00%
Certificate Holding 5 % & above
; Number of
5/No | Name of Certificate Holders Cottificates Held % Held
1 Mis. Pashtoon 16,469,322 12.73%
Wasl Modaraba Management Limited
i (Formerly AWWAL Modaraba Management 12,938,167 10.00%
Limited)
3 Prudential Capital Management Limited 10,521,205 8.13%




Wasl Mobility Modaraba

(Formerly First Prudential Modaraba)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Review meeting of the Certificate Holders of Wasl Mobility Modaraba
(Formerly First Prudential Modaraba) [WASL] will be held on Tuesday, 28™ October, 2025 at 11:30 a.m. at Lahore
Chamber of Commerce and Industry, 11-Shahrah-e-Aiwan-e-Sanat-O Tijarat, Lahore both in person as well as
electronically through video link arrangement to transact the following business :-

1. Ordinary Business:

To review the performance of the Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2025.

2. Special Business:

APPROVAL FOR ISSUANCE OF RIGHT MODARABA CERTIFICATES

The Board of Directors of WASL Modaraba Management Limited (Formerly Awwal Modaraba
Management Limited) [the Modaraba Company] in their meeting held on 29 September 2025,
at 11:00 a.m. at Office No: 818, 8th Floor High-Q Tower, Jail Road, Gulberg-5, Lahore considered,
approved and recommended the following:

e Increase in authorized certificate capital of WASL from 152,217,660 modaraba certificates of
Rupees 10 each to 200,000,000 modaraba certificates of Rupees 10 each subject to approval of
Registrar Modaraba Companies and Modaraba, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) and approval of amendment in the Prospectus of WASL accordingly.

e Subject to compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and requisite regulatory
approvals and permissions as the case may be, including the approval of certificate holders of
WASL and the approval of Registrar Modaraba Companies and Modaraba, SECP and SECP under
the applicable laws, to increase the paid-up certificate capital of WASL from 129,391,676
modaraba certificates of Rupees 10 each to 160,717,400 modaraba certificates of Rupees 10
each by the issuance of additional 31,325,724 modaraba certificates of the face value of Rs. 10
each by way of issue of right modaraba certificates to be issued at an issue price of:

o Rs.4.74 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 52.6% to par value) —for all modaraba
certificate holders except the Modaraba Company [sponsor];

o Rs. 5.27 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 47.3% to par value) — for the
Modaraba Company [sponsor] portion of the right issue;

to be offered to the modaraba certificate holders in proportion of 24.21 right modaraba
certificates for every 100 modaraba certificates held, i.e. 24.21% right modaraba certificate
issue at an issue price of Rs. 4.74 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 52.6% to par value)
—for all modaraba certificate holders except the Modaraba Company [sponsor] and Rs. 5.27 per
modaraba certificate (at a discount of 47.3% to par value) — for the Modaraba Company
[sponsor] portion of the right issue.



Type of Face Right Price | Right Issue Certificate |Discount on Right Issue
Security Value Rs./ Capital.  [Right Issue
Rs. / Certificate
Certificat Rs.
Rs. Rs. Nos Rs. Rs. Rs.
Modaraba 10 4.74 for 31,325,724 313,257,240 163,113,046 150,144,194
Certificates others
and 5.27
for
Modarab
E]
Company
portion of
24.21 Right Certificates for every 100 Modaraba Certificates held i.e. 24.21% right modaraba
certificate issue at an issue price of Rs. 4.74 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 52.6% to par
value) — for all modaraba certificate holders except the Modaraba Company [sponsor] and Rs. 5.27 per
modaraba certificate (at a discount of 47.3% to par value) — for the Modaraba Company [sponsor]
portion of the right issue. Against payment to WASL.

The Certificate Holders are requested to pass or otherwise the following Resolutions:-

Proposed Resolutions for Approval of Certificate Holders:-

“RESOLVED THAT subject to compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and requisite
regulatory approvals and permissions as the case may be, including the approval of Registrar
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba, SECP and SECP under the applicable laws, approval be and
is hereby accorded to increase the paid-up certificate capital of WASL from 129,391,676
modaraba certificates of Rupees 10 each to 160,717,400 modaraba certificates of Rupees 10 each
by the issuance of additional 31,325,724 modaraba certificates of the face value of Rs. 10 each
by way of issue of right modaraba certificates to be issued at an issue price of:

o Rs. 4.74 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 52.6% to par value) — for all modaraba
certificate holders except the WASL Modaraba Management Limited (Formerly Awwal
Modaraba Management Limited) [the Modaraba Company] {sponsor};

o Rs. 5.27 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 47.3% to par value) — for the Modaraba
Company {sponsor} portion of the right issue;

to be offered to the modaraba certificate holders in proportion of 24.21 right modaraba
certificates for every 100 modaraba certificates held, i.e. 24.21% right modaraba
certificate issue at an issue price of Rs. 4.74 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 52.6%
to par value) — for all modaraba certificate holders except the Modaraba Company [sponsor]
and Rs. 5.27 per modaraba certificate (at a discount of 47.3% to par value) — for the
Modaraba Company [sponsor] portion of the right issue.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all fractional entitlements will be consolidated in the name of the
Company Secretary (under trust) and unpaid letter of right in respect thereof shall be sold on
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, the net proceeds from which sales, once realized, shall be
distributed/ paid to the entitled modaraba certificate holders in accordance with their respective
entitlements as per applicable laws.”



“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT that any unsubscribed modaraba certificates may be offered and
allotted to such persons at their issue price and in the manner as the directors may deem fit in
accordance with the Section 83(1)(a)(iv) of the Companies Act, 2017, including WASL Modaraba
Management Limited (Formerly Awwal Modaraba Management Limited) [the Modaraba
Company].”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive and Company Secretary of the Modaraba Company
be and are hereby authorized to determine the dates of closure of WASL's Certificate Transfer Books
to determine the entitlements of the modaraba certificate holders of WASL with respect to the right
issue.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer and/or the Company Secretary be and
are hereby authorized singly/jointly to take or cause to be taken any or all acts , deeds and things

as may be considered necessary or appropriate for implementation above mentioned resolutions
and all actions necessary for completion of this Right issue of Modaraba Certificates.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the decision of the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company
in their meeting held on 29 September 2025 to increase the authorized certificate capital of
WASL from 152,217,660 modaraba certificates of Rupees 10 each to 200,000,000 modaraba
certificates of Rupees 10 each subject to approval of Registrar Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and approval of amendment
in the Prospectus of WASL accordingly be and is hereby ratified.”

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business to be transacted
at the Annual Review Meeting of the Modaraba, scheduled to be held on October 28, 2025.

Purpose & Objective of the Right Issue of Modaraba Certificates

Registrar Modaraba Companies and Modaraba, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) vide letter dated 19 September 2024 required that shareholder loan of Rs. 150 million in
Wasl Mobility Modaraba (Formerly First Prudential Modaraba) by Pak Brunei Investment
Company Limited (PBICL) ex- sponsors of Modaraba shall not be released without its
replacement with new equity injection, hence this Right Issue.

Benefits to WASL and modaraba certificate holders

The Right Issue is expected to positively impact the profitability, thereby enhancing expected
returns to the Certificate holders as WASL will save on account of return on short term loan.
Such return was Rs. 25,621,505 for the year ended 30 June 2025.

Risk Factors associated with the Right issue

The Right Issue of WASL is being carried out at a price which is less than the current modaraba
certificate price in the market and hence there is no major investment risk associated with the
Right Issue. The Modaraba Company (substantial certificate holder) of WASL has confirmed
that it shall subscribe to its right entitlement. The following risks are associated with the Issue;
however, they have been effectively mitigated by WASL:



Risk

Mitigation

1-Undersubscription Risk:
The right issue may fail
subscription.

to attract full

To guarantee the successful raising of the
required funds, the Modaraba Company
shall take up all the unsubscribed modaraba
right certificates at their issue price which
ensure the WASL will get it desired capital

2-Market Risk:

The right issue can signal financial distress or
dilute the value of existing certificates, which
can negatively affect the certificate price and
investor confidence.

WASL has adopted a comprehensive
strategy  focusing on  transparent
communication. The right issue is tied to its
long-term strategy, not just short-term
needs.

Justification for issue of Certificates at discount to face value

Strictly in accordance with section 82 of the Companies Act, 2017. The market price of
modaraba certificates is lower than the par value of the modaraba certificates since more

than one decade.

Notes:

1. The Certificate Transfer Books of the Modaraba shall be closed from 14t October, 2025 to 28t
October, 2025 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at the office of Share Registrar of
Modaraba, M/s. C&K Management Associates (Private) Limited, M-13, Progressive Plaza, Civil
Lines Quarter, near P.1.D.C., Beaumont Road, Karachi, Tel: 92 21-35685930 | +92 21-35687839 at
the close of business on, 13t October, 2025 will be treated in time for the purpose to attend the

2.

Annual Review Meeting.

The Certificate holders are advised to notify change in their address, if any, to M/s. C&K
Management Associates (Private) Limited, M13, Progressive Plaza, Civil Lines Quarter, near

P.I.D.C., Beaumont Road, Karachi.

Participation in Annual Review Meeting

Certificate holders who are interested to attend the ARM through online platform and whose names
appeared in the book of the Modaraba by the close of business (5:00 PM) on October 21, 2025 are
requested to get themselves registered by sending their particulars at the designated email address
(arm@wasl.com.pk), mentioning their names, CNIC number, Folio number, cell phone number and
email address. The webinar link would be provided only to the registered certificate holders who
have provided all the requested information at the above designated email address. Members will
be registered, after necessary verification as per the above requirement and will be provided a
video-link by the Modaraba via email. Only those members will be accepted at the ARM via video-

conferencing whose names match the details shared with the Modaraba for registration.




4. Annual Report

The Annual Report of Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2025 have been uploaded on the
Modaraba's website at below link:

WEB LINK QR Code

https://www.wasl|.com.pk/financial-report-2025

Notwithstanding the above, the Modaraba will provide hard copies of the audited financial
statements, to any Member on their request, at their registered address, free of cost, within one
(1) week of receiving such request.

5. Unclaimed Dividends

Certificate holders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividends are advised to contact
our Share Registrar to enquire about their unclaimed dividend.

6. Conversion of Physical Modaraba Certificates into Book-Entry Form:

As per requirement of Companies Act, 2017, all listed companies are required to replace the
Certificates held in physical form with the Certificates to be issued in Book-Entry, all Certificate
holders holding Certificates in physical form are requested to convert their shares in Book-Entry
Form in order to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. Certificate holders may
contact the Modaraba Share Registrar to understand the process of conversion of Certificates held
in physical form, into the Book-Entry Form.


https://www.wasl.com.pk/financial-report-2025

Wasl Mobility Modaraba

(Formerly First Prudential Modaraba)
FORM OF PROXY

ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING-2025

I/We of being
certificate holders(s) of First Prudential Modaraba holding

Certificate(s) hereby appoint

of holding CNIC/Passport No or failing him/her
of holding  CNIC/Passport
No as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us,

and on my/our behalf at the Annual Review Meeting of the Modaraba to be held on Tuesday, October
28, 2025 at 11:30 am, at Lahore and/or any adjournment thereof

As witness my/our hand this day of 2025

Certificate holder’s Signatures

Certificate holder’s Folio No. Please affix Revenue

Number of Certificates held Stamp

To be signed by the above named Certificate holder
NOTES:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the
Modaraba, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. A proxy must be a
member of the Company.

2. The Proxy Form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

3. Attested copies of CNIC of the appointer and the proxy-holder shall be furnished with the
Proxy Form.

4. The proxy-holder shall produce his/her original CNIC at the time of the meeting.

5. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / Power of Attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted along with Proxy Form.



& WASL|mocarses

(Formerly First Prudential Modaraba)

Registered & Head Office Branch Office
818, 8" Floor, High-Q Tower Suit No: A & B, 3" Floor, Plot No: 31-C,
Jail Road, Gulberg-V, Lahore Khayaban-e-Shamsheer, DHA, Phase-V, Karachi

Phone : 042-35135117 Phone : 021-35155610



